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NHP_ is determined to provide the very highest quality buildings

for its tenanfs and to provide the highest quality care to residents

in its homes. If we can do this in a timely and efficient manner, our

residents, staff, business partners and shareholders will all benefit.
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THE OFFER

The Offer by TBG CareCo Limited of 260p per share, announced on 29 November 2004, values
the Group's equily at £563.5 million (ofter the exercise of all share options).*

Audited Results for the Year to 30 Seplember 2004

SUMMARY

Tumover up 15 per cent. fo £198.1 million (2003: £171.9 million), driven by the growth of
Hightield Care.

Profit before fax increased by 44 per cent. fo £35.6 million (2003: £24.8 million) affer exceptional
operating income of £3.3 million (2003: £0.3 million) and profit on disposal of tangible fixed ossets
of £3.1 million (2003: £0.3 million).

Basic eamings per Ordinary Share up 23 per cent. to 15.5p [2003: 12.6p).

Net asset value per Ordinary Share increased by 54 per cent. to 242.7p (2003: 157.6p). Diluted net
asset value per Ordinary Share increased by 55 per cent. to 235.5p {2003: 151.8p}.

In light of the Offer, no final dividend is proposed. Total dividend for the year, paid as the interim
dividend this year, of 3p (2003: 3p).

.Highfi'eld Care achieved higher profitability in the second half, recording an operating profit for the
year os o whole of £2.3 million (2003: operating loss of £2.0 million), despite o loss of £0.6 million
in the seasonally weaker first half.

" Sir Martin Laing, Chaimman of NHP said, “The cash OFFer'gives all shareholders the opportunity to
realise in full the gain in the volue of their investments over the last four years and values NHP ot a
level which the Board believes represents a meaningful premium to the dilufed net assef value.”

Bit Colvin, Chief Executive, added, “The greatly improved profit for the year is mainly due to the
remendous work done by the enfire feam ot Highfield Care. } am proud of the achievements of our
Group over the past four years with the combined efforts of ali staff contributing fo our success.”

* “Offer” — The recommended cash offer made outside the United States by UBS Limited and Deutsche Bank AG Londen
for and on behalf of TBG CareCo Limited and in the United Sfotes by TBG CareCo Limited fo acquire all the issusd
and to be issued NHP Ordinary Shares on the ierms and subject to the conditions set out in the offer document and the
accompanying form of acceptance issued by and/or on behalf of TBG CoreCo Limited indluding, where the context
so requires, any subsequenf revision, variafion, extension or renewai of such offer and includes any elecfion available in
connection with it.

Top ight: Brooklands Caurs Confre ~ Nosth Gost tineonshita
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Financial Performance

For tha year ended 30 Sepiember 2004

Increase/

2004 2003 {decrease)

Tumover o £198.1m £1719m 15%
Profit before fox _'endudihg exceptional operating income?* £32.3m  £24.5m 3%
" Profit beforetax , ' £35.6m  £24.8m 44%
Basic ed_mings per Ordinary Share | ' 15.5p 12.6p 23%
Dividends per Ordinary Share 3.0p 3.0p -
 Operating cash flow after interesft £365m  £24.7m 48%
Net assets per Ordinary Share : 242.7p 157.6p 54%
Shareholders’ funds ‘ £5039m  £320.5m 57%
Beds 17443 17,754 (2%)
Investment and operated properties at book value ' £892.1m  £736.5m 21%
Invesiment and operated properties af cost £666.7m  £662.2m 1%

* Profit before tax exduding exceptional operating income for the yeor ended 30 September 2004 is caleulated as profit
an ordinary adlivifies before taxation of £35.6 million less net exceptional operating income of £3.3 million (2003:
£24.8 million less £0.3 million). :

t Operating cash flow after inferest for the year ended 30 September 2004 is calculated as net cash inflow from operating
adiivifies of £74.2 million less net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance of £37.7 million (2003:
£64.3 million less £39.6 million}.

Top laft: Theockdey Coro Cenntre — Newonstle upoe Tyne




Five Year Summary

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 2004
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_ 2003 2002 2001 2000
For the years ended 30 September . £000 £000 £000 £7000 £1000
Property business 44816 48,985 56,631 71,153 70,896
Highfield Care 153,234 122,907 69,333 5473 -

 Total turnover - - 198,050 171,892 125964 76,626 70,896
" Costofsales . (107,001} (87,321) (47,836  (3,806) -
. Gross profit . : 91,049 84,571 78,128 72,820 70,896
Provision for tenants’ doubtfu debis and relofed costs - — {4,838 (10,25%9) (9.067)
Depreciation and amorlisation - (9,898)  (6,348)  (3,551) ®17)  (155)
Other admmls?mhve expenses ' : {(20,255) (19,.259) (16,199}  ,532)  (7,080)
Exceptionol operating income/(costs) - 3,300 250 248 {4,651) (28,875)
Administrative expenses (26,853) (25357} {(24,340) (22,259) (45,177)
Group operating profit 64,196 59214 53,788 50,561 25,719
Share of associated underakings’
operating profits/{losses) 28 32 283 (210) (5)
Total operating profit 64224 59246 54071 50351 25,714
Profit/{loss) on disposal of tangible fixed assefs 3110 337 a7 n21) 45
Net interest poyable and similar charges (31,714) (34,827) (38,072) {40,205} (39,505}
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 35620 24756 16370 10,025 (13,744
Tax {charge)/credit on profit/{loss} on ordinary activities {3,798) 556 509 2407  (1,886)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 31,822 25312 16,879 12432 (15432
Profit/(loss) for the year 31,822 25312 16879 12432 (15,632
' Dividends paid (6,193)  (6,088) - () (5)
Retained profit/{loss) iransferred to/(from) reserves 25629 19,224 14,879 12,431 (15,637
Consclidated Balance Sheet 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
As at 30 September £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Invesiment properties of valuation 529,900 464,640 483,330 535430 586400
Operated properties ot valuation 362,235 271810 159,920 52,248 -
Other riet ossets 155,975 151,264 148215 137,538 158,376
Non-recourse borrowings — net Secured Notes - (533,710) (532,543) (531,366) (530,094) (529,797)
Other borrowings — net bank loans (10,482) (34,630) (52,362) (62,730) (139,037)
Total Shareholders’ funds : 503,918 320,541 207,737 102,392 75,942
Statistics _
Basic eamings/(loss} per Ordinary Share 15.5p 12.6p 10.1p 8.1pt  (10.6p)
Operdting cash flow. after mferesf ' £365m £247m £14.8m £7.3m £14.8m
Dividends per share _ : 3.0p 3.0p - - -
Net assets per share ‘ 2427p 1574p 1034p  655p0 5l.4pt
Gaanng Consolidated - 80% 136% 222% 499% 675%
Gearing - excludlng non-recourse borrowlngs 2% 12% 30% 135%  429%
Beds 17,443 17,754 18,395 18,721 19,002
Number of homes * 358 367 373 377 379
Investment and operated properties at cost £666.7m £6622m £659.6m £662.1m £669.2m

* Including nil homes held for resale at 30 Seplember 2004 {2003: 2} (2002: 4) (2001: 4) (2000: 1).

! Restated fo reflect the effects of the Rights lssue in July 2002,
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Chairman’s Statement

In the past yéc:r, the Board and management of NHP have continued

-the strategic focus to build value for shareholders from our operating

subsidiary, Highfield Care, while at the same time ensuring as far as

possible that our investment assets are operated by substantial and

profitable third party tenants.

The undoubted highlight of the year under review was the further
progress made by Highfield Care, which recorded an operating profit
for the year of £2.3 million. In 2002, the portfolio of homes that today

- comprises Highfield Care generated third parly rental bad debis of
opproximotely £4.8 million as well as operafing losses of £3.2 million
in respect of those homes operated by Highfield Care during that
period. In only three yeors we have built one of the leading national
operators of core homes in the UK, recruited one of the best manage-
ment feams fo run it and fumed Highfield Care info the profifable and
growing business that i is today.

The improved environment for the major care home operators across
the UK has contributed to an increase in the profitability of our third
party operated homes as well as Highfield Care. As asset values in our
business are driven substantially by cument profitability, this improvement
has given rise to a 21 per cent. up-lift in the combined value of our
investment and operated properties during the year.

RESULTS

Tumover in the year to 30 September 2004 increased by 15 per cent.
to £198.1 million os a result of higher fee revenues ot Highfield Core
and a small increase in the number of homes it operates. Profit before
taxation was £35.6 million {2003: £24.8 million), representing an
increase of 44 per cent. Stripping out exceptional operating income of
£3.3 million (2003: £0.3 million), this year refating wholly to write-
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Chairmon’s Statement (Continved)

backs of permanent diminution of property value provisions, and profit on disposal of fangible fixed assets
of £3.1 million {2003: £0.3 million), profit before taxation sfill increased by 21 per cent. to £29.2 million
(2003: £24.2 million).

Basic eamings per Ordinary Share increased by 23 per cent. to 15.5p (2003: 12.6p) after a tax charge of
£3,8. million (2003: net credit of £0.6 million). Diluted eamings per share were 15.1p {2003: 12.2p),

The valiss of investment and operated properties increased by 21 per cent. fo £892.1 million (2003:
£736.5 mill‘ion},. The uplift in our annual independent valuatiion plus retained profits for the year hos led to
‘a 54 per cent. increase in net assef value per Ordinary Share to 242.7p (2003: 157.6p). Net recourse
bomowings were significantly lower ot £9.8 million (2003: £34.4 million), representing recourse gearing
of 2 per cent. (2003: 12 per cent.).

! DIVIDENDS

An inferina dividend of 3p per Ordinary Share was paid in July this year. In light of the Offer, the NHP Board
has not recommended a final dividend. However, the NHP Board will reconsider the dividend policy in the
event that the Offer lopses or is withdrawn.

MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

The Board, on behalf of shareholders, would like to thank NHP’s management fearn and staff for their hard
_ work in restoring the fortunes of our Company. We owe particular thanks to the Highfield Care team —
I management feam, professionals, carers and ancillary stoff — for their dedication and successful efforts in
building Highfield Care into one of the UK’s premier care home operators.

OUTLOOK _

The improved operdafing environment, albeit with the usual regional variations, has confinued into the
current year. Demand for care home places remains roughly constant but the supply of new beds is limited
to those few areas where fee levels can absorb the increasing costs of new build. The care home industry,
we believe, will continue its process of consclidation into a handful of well-funded, professional operdators ot
the national level on the one hand and thousands of very much smaller operators on the other.

MLO—W

SIR MARTIN LAING
Chairman

7 December 2004
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Chiet Executive’s Review

The performance of both our property and operating businesses in the

financial year under review was very encouraging. Profits, associated

cash flows and net ossets all reached record levels for NHP

completing the tumnaround of NHP begun in 2000 when Richard

Midmer and.| were appointed to our present positions.

Net borrowings {recourse and non-recourse} have fallen to £403.4
million (2003: £435.9 million), which coupled with the increase in
shareholders’ funds, has led to the reduction in gearing from 500 per
cent. at 30 September 2001 to 80 per cent. at 30 September 2004.
NHP’s share price has increased 14 fold within the lost four years.

The most significant contribution to profit growth was the substantially
improved financial performance of Highfield Care, which progressed
from an operating loss of £2.0 million in 2003 fo an operating profit of
£2.3 million for the year under review. Highfield Care’s profitability
impravement is partly due to the £24.7 million invested over the {ast
three years in its physical assets.

The 21 per cent. increase in the value of investment and operated prop-
erties was the major contributing factor feeding through to the 54 per cent
increase — fo 242.7p — in undiluted net asset value per Ordinary Share.
The overall rise in the valve of our properties is substantially aitributable
fo their cument profitability, resulting from rises in average fees, increased
occupancy and operational efficiency ot Highfield Care and the other
tenants, as well as improved market sentiment towards the secior,

THE UK CARE HOME INDUSTRY
Allocation of funds by local authority social services’ deportments is not

Top laft: The Beaches Cote Cenre — Donfarmbine
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Chief Executive’s Review (Continued)

consistent between the categories of care for which they are responsible. Operators of care homes that rely
on fees paid by social services, which accounts for approximately 60 per cent. of all elderly residents,
continue to be marginalised in favour of those categories perceived to be more deserving such as the
provision of children’s services. This public under-funding has resulted in the loss of several thousands of
~ beds each year s owners have found themselves unable fo trade profitably. Continued low fee rates has
severely restricted the building of new homes in'many areas of the country. However, the reduction in bed
numbers has creoted capacity shortages in parts of the country and forced local authorities to realign fees

. '_'upwurds fo preserve exlshng capacity.

In 2004, Hwe averoge fee increase in the UK for publicly funded residents was approximately 6.5 per cent.,
representing a real increase above care home cost inflation. However, this average figure masks a wide
range of setlements with almost half of all local authorities awarding increases at or below the increase in
the cost of care provision.

~ Our tenant bose has seen considerable corporate activity over the last two years. In 2003, Ashboume
Healihcare, the fifih largest provider of care beds in the UK, was the subject of a management buy-in
backed by Elecira Pariners Europe. Also in 2003, Care Management Group, one of the leading providers
* of specialist care, was acquired by iis management backed by ISIS Equity Pariners. In the last six months,
Allianz Capital Pariners acquired Four Seasons Health Care, the largest care bed operator in the UK, and
Southern Cross BidCo Limited, a company indirectly controfled by the BCP IV Funds, acquired Southem
Cross Healthcare, the fourth largest operator. This spate of corporate acfivity means that our main third
parly fenants are now owned by well-funded financial organisations and are well placed to ensure that the
core home assets they operate remain in good condition. From NHP's point of view, the consolidation in
the sedtor has been positive — both in ferms of tenants” financial covenants ond their ability to maintain our

care homes.

PROPERTY BUSINESS

At 30 September 2004, the invesiment portfolio of properties operated by nine third pory tenants
compnsed 192 homes with some 9,500 beds. The top three third party fenants operate some 8,260 of
these beds, representing 87 per cent. of the total.

The financial performance of our third party tenanis continued to improve with profit per bed on their
NHP-owned. homes mcreasmg over the year. Rent receivable from the homes operated by third party
tenants during the year was £44.8 million (2003: £49.0 million) with the year-end number of homes
~ reducing by 15 to 192. There were no bad debts during the year, reflecting the consolidation of the tenant
base info.a small number of financially robust operators. For the first time in five years, there were no homes
in receivership at the yeur-end.

hphhmwmm&wm—mm
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Chief Executive’s Review (Comnd
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By 2003, we had converted over half of our third party leases (’fhose with Ashbourne and Southem Cross}.

from pavement rents plus tumover rents to a higher, R RPI—Imked ‘pavement rent. The first RP! escalator for
these leases became effechve in Apr!l this year and prowded an onnual increase of 2.5 per cent.

Consohduhon of NHP's tenant base has now come o an end with the complefion of two receiverships
during the yeor. The first resulfed in the oddition of 14 leases in South Wales to nghﬁeld Care's portiolio
ond the second saw nine spedidlist homes transferred fo Southern Cross. Southem Cross today operates :
104 NHP owned properhes with 5,200 beds, representmg 34 per cent. of our totgl beds. ‘

Qur increosed focus on qdwely managing our pmpeﬂy portiolio s refledted in a number of disposals,
exfensions and one care home: acquisition. In March, following successful proof of concept, we disposed
of six prevuc;usly under-performing I'l:ghﬁeld Care leases that had been converted to psychiatric rehabiliia-
fion. hqspﬂds This sale gengraied £10 8 mlllton in cash, tndudmg a gain on disposal of £2.4 ‘milfion, and
redyced ; cenfrul ovqmecds by an annyalised £0.7 mllhon A furl’ner four homes were sold during the year

,far o comblned oush consnderahon of £6.1 miltion, producmg a net gain on.disposal of £0.7 mllllon

The addlhons ond extensions fo existing care homes have been concentrated on those operated by
H@hﬁeld Care. Currently, opprovvals have been received for the bunldlng of 80 additional rooms, of which

‘20 have been comp!eted We are also in the process of building fwo extensions on homes operated by

Ashbeume I'I:&OHflcore to add 30 new rooms. One new-build home in the centre of York successfully
ggmed planning opproval in the year and is.now under construction. This 80-bed home is expected to open
in mid-2006 and w1li be operuiecl by Highficld Cure Qur ability to make profitable acquisitions of care '
homes has been constrained by indusiry. economics in parts of the UK ond by the current high prices-being

o pcud for such assets.. However, the Group acquired the freehold of a 58-bed home in Paisley, Abbeycourt

Care, for £2 2 million i ncludlng assumed debf) to add to nghﬁeld Care's Scotfish business.

NHP's tenanted invesiment portfolio now comprises well-funded, secure, longderm businesses with the

ability fo invest in NEP’s assety: The improvement to date in profitability is reflected in the 19 per cent. aver-
age uplift in value of.our hoines operated by third party tenants.

BlLL CQLWN
Chief Executive
7 December 2004 -
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Hightield Care Review

At 30 September 2004, Highfield Care operated or managed 186

“care homes with 8,900 beds, of which 166 (with 7,900 beds) are

‘owned by NHP. representing some 45 per cent. of the beds owned

by NHP. -~

Tog left: Qechond Manor Core Gefre — Northem freland

- Highfield Care hos made good progress on all fronts.  After a much-

reduced operating loss in the seasonally weaker first half, Highfield Care
recorded an operating profit of £2.9 million in the second half,
producing an operating profit for the year of £2.3 million (2003: loss of
£2.0 million). Average fees per resident hove increased by 6.8 per cent.
fo. £395 per week, occupancy has increased from 91 per cent. fo
94 per cent. for the comparable portfolios and the key profit-per-bed
benchmark increased to an annualised £6,300 at the year-end (2003:

" £5,400). Highfield Care’s increasing profitability is a direct reflection of

NHP’s substantial investment in ifs care homes, infrastructure and staff.
The management team’s focus on quality, raining and marketing has
created a profitable, stand-alone business that is today the fourth largest
operator of care homes in the UK,

One of the major targets for the year was o reduce the use of expen-

. sive ogency personnel to cover for abseniees and to fill short-term

vacancies in Highfield Care’s homes. We have tackled this issue with a

- combination of centrally planned but locally organised recruitment

drives, loyolly schemes, incentives and even compefitions with high
walue prizes. Finding ond retaining the additional high quality staff we
need remains a challenge.

The year to 30 September 2004 saw the completion of the ‘catch-up’
copital expenditure programme by NHP fo refurbish and upgrode
Highfield Care’s operated porifolio of NHP owned homes. This
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Highfield Care Review (Codtinued)

programme was necessitated by previous tenonis’ failure fo invest in the properties as they found themselves
in financial difficully. In the yeor under review, Group copital expenditure was £12.8 million (2003:
£7.4 million) with the majority of this figure (£8.3 million) being incurred in the first half of the year. The
expenditure covered the upgrade of buildings’ exteriors and interiors, the purchase of special equipment
such as elecirically operated beds as well as specially adapted minibuses and new fumiture.

Highfield Care sets great store by its homes playing an adiive role in their local communities. In 2002 we
took the decision to provide financial support to our care homes so that they could raise their profiles in
their local communities - improving the quality of life for residents, boosting staff morale and providing an
effective channel for marketing. Funds raised by activities involving residents in the individual homes were
maiched — pound for pound — by NHP So successiul and popular hos this progromme become, thot
between Highfield Care’s residents and staff, with NHP’s financial suppor, a total of over £1 million has
been raised fo date. This money has gone o improving the lives of our residents and also to o variety of
local couses championed by Highfield Care’s homes across the UK.

Other infigfives include o sponsorship prograrmme fo provide sporls equipment and sirips for over 100
local state primary and secondary school sports feams and @ porinership with Everton Football Club's
Football in the Community programme to expand their Disability Football Programme. A more recent
initiative has been fo support community arfs projects — mimoring our residents’ arfs competition that
{eatures once ogain on Highfield Care’s 2005 Residents’ Calendar. The first of these projeds is with Hall
Garth School, a state specialist college for arts in Middlesbarough.

STAFF
This successful and profitable business could not have been built without the efforts of all Highfield Care’s
managers, team leaders and staff. The care they provide throughout the UK is central to our success.

{ would like to thank all staff on behalf of the Board and shareholders.

Chief Executive Highfigld Care
7 December 2004

Top left: Perwood ndge (o Gene — Slowcastershire
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Financial Review

This review provides a commentary on the principal movements in the

Group occounfs for the year to 30 September 2004 and an analysis

of the Group s businesses.

Top feft: tys Hewyeid Care Contre — Dyfed

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Rents from our third party tenants of NHP care home assets totalled
£44.8 million for the year {2003: £49.0 million). This included signifi-
cantly reduced turnover rent of £2.5 million {2003: £4.3 million), as the
maijority of our leoses have now had tumover rent consolideted into

- pavement rent and been moved onto RP} escalotors. The decling in total

third parly rents receivable resulted from the transfer to Highfield Care
during the period of 14 leases from a fenant in receivership and the sale
of one home previously operated by Southem Cross. Notional rent
charged to Highfield Care was £29.4 million (2003: £25.7 miilion). As
a result of disposals made during the year, total rents receivable during
the year from both third parties and Highfield Care {notional rent)
reduced to £74.2 million (2003: £74.7 million}.

Highfield Care’s turnaver increased by 25 per cent. fo £153.2 million
{2003: £122.9 million} largely due to the addition of a net seven NHP
owned homes to the Highfield Care operated porifolio and higher

"occupancy and fee revenues per resident. Combined total Group

fumover was £198.1 million (2003: £171.9 million). Cost of sales
increased to £107.0 million (2003: £87.3 million}, broadly in line with
the growth of Highfield Care’s fumover.

Highfield Care’s financial performance again improved significantly
during the year. The much-reduced first half operating loss of
£0.6 million (2003: £2.7 million) was more than made up by an
operating profit in the second half of £2.9 million (2003: £0.7 million).
This produced an operating profit for the year of £2.3 million (2003:
operating loss of £2.0 million),

No. 2798607




Profit before tox was £35.6 million {2003: £24.8 miklion), which included exceptional operating income of
£3.3 million {2003: a net income of £0.3 million). This year's exceptional operating income is from the write
back of permanent diminution in value on fixed asset properties {2003: £1.7 million). Also included in the
profit before tax is a net £3.1 million profit (2003: £0.3 million) on disposal of fangible fixed assets. This
figure comprises a gain of £2.4 million on the disposal of our start-up psychiatric rehabilitation business (then
called NHP Healihcare Parinerships), which comprised six under-performing leases previously operated by
Highfield Care, and a net gain of £0.7 million relating principally o the sale of four other homes.

Group‘-depreciaﬁon charged in the year was £9.8 million (2003: £6.2 million) including £8.8 million
(2003: £5.4 million) for the Highfield Care operated properties.

Net interest payable and similar charges were further reduced to £31.7 million {2003: £34.8 million),
reflecting the lower recourse borrowings and the benefits of the new banking facility put in place lost year,
on which bank loan interest of £1.4 million wos payable in 2004 (2003: £2.6 million). Average cost of
bank borrowing during the year was 5.37 per cent. {2003: 5.6 per cent). The blended fixed rate of the
£559 million (2003: £559 million) non-recourse secured notes ouistanding was unchanged at 6.7 per
cent. The secured notes represented 98 per cent. (2003: 94 per cent.) of the Group's tofal debt.

Basic eamings per Ordinary Shore were 15.5p (2003: 12.6p) and diluted eamings per Ordinary Share
were 15.1p (2003: 12.2p) after a fox charge for the year of £3.8 million (2003: credit of £0.6 million).

. BALANCE SHEET

At 30 September 2004, there were 358 core homes in the Group's property porifolio (2003: 367 homes)
with @ tofal of 17,400 beds (2003: 17,700 beds). Highfield Care operated 166 of these homes with
total of 7,900 beds {2003: 159 homes with 7,500 beds).

GVA Grimley’s annual year-end independent valuation of the 192 investment properties (2003: 207 homes,
including those in receivership ot the fime) produced a value of £529.9 million (2003: £464.6 million). The
principal reasons for the increase in value of the investment properties were the improved profitability of third
parly tenants’” operated homes and the stronger covenans resulting from the acquisition, backed by well-
funded finaricial organisations, of Southem Cross and Four Seasons — two of NHP's largest fenants.

The 166 operated properties (2003:-159 homes) were valued, on an existing use basis, ot £342.2 million

{2003: £271.8 million). The significant increase in the value of operated properties reflects the material

improvement in profitability resulting from the substantial investment made in Highfield Care’s homes and

stoff and, to o lesser extent, the 15 per cent. portfolio premium (2003: 5 per cent) applied by GYA Grimley.

This increased portfolio premium has been justified by GVA Grimley on the basis that it reflects ‘current
" purchaser appetite for large care home groups of this nature’.

“Taking the two asset classes together, the portfolio value has increased by 21 per cent. fo £892.1 million
{2003: £736.5 million). The overall yield on the investment property porifolio, based on the annualised
receivable rents of £43.9 million (2003: £44.8 million), was 8.3 per cent. {2003: 9.6 per cent.). Using full
annual pavement rents only, the yield reduces fo 7.9 per cent. (2003: 9.3 per cent.).

Top tight: Guide Lone Gaore Canire — Manchaster




Mo 31T

 Finandiol Review (Counwd

Total net debt, exdudmg the deposri swaps and zero coupon nofes of ihe threp securifisation vehidles,
reduced fo £524 8 milllon (2003 £548 é m:ﬂp Nei recourse borrownpgs were £9.8 million {2003:
: '£34 4 rnrillon) ut ihe yeqr-end Consol;duted geﬁnng mdudmg the r hon-recourse semnhsed debt — was
10 per ceni ot 30 Sepfember 2004 (2003 136 | per oerd) Gearing oulculoied using only recourse
. borrowmgs fell forihe fourth oonsecuhve year fo 2 per cent. (2003: 12 per cent.) as a result of lower bank
debi ihe mcreose in vulue of ihe ussei bl::se und reiumed profits. .

CASH FLOW

. Net cush lnﬂow from operating qchvrhes 1mproved to £74.2 mllllon (2003 £64.3 million), primarily
reﬂechng 1he mpmvgd oper ,' ':nql Re{_fonnonce- '"d worklng capital manogemeni of Hughﬁeld Care. Net
cash interest and ﬁnance cosis reduced to £37.7 mlﬂlon (2903 £39.6 rnll]lon) mﬂechng the lower bank
borromngs ond 'rhejr reduced cost.

' Cupﬁal expendliure forthe year, excluding the £2.2 million acqisition of Abbeycguﬂ Care Limited, totalled
£]7 8 mil]lon (20@3; £H 3 mlllton) und was ccncgnirated in the. ﬁrst half when Highfield Care largely
completg;d |fs autd'l up' invesiment programme. Dlsposgl proceeds of £17.6 million {2003: £5.4 million}
substunhally offsef this and were principally generated fmm the disposal of NHP Healthcare Purtnersh:ps,
our s’h:lrt-up psychlatnc rehublfduiion busmess, and four furiher care homes.

FINANCIAL qgmmvss AND org;gg INSTRUMENTS )
The possf swap ogreements and 7ero , coupon notes assadiated with the redemption of the Care Homes

' 1,20nd3 sewnhsgd notes remigined in place during the period. These investments mature between 2021

, and 2928 and. prpwde forthe repayment of £408 mllllon of the non-recourse £559 mitlion notes. in NHP’s
Wi;dgigd accounts, interest on these investments is accrued on o monthly basis uniil their maturity detes.
AL30 Seplember 2004, these investments were i'teid at a book value in the consolidated balance sheef of
£147, 0 million (200& £139.5 mllhon)

INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING smumns {as)

‘With qffect from lOdober 2005, NHP in. common with other listed companies, will be required to publish
its vesults using IFRS ruiher thunihe cument UK agcounting standards. The changeover io.q different set of
qgooun’ang siandnrds vill impact on reported balance sheets and profits. NHP: has commenced the work
necessary to. prepare for this changeover and has identified that the most significant potential adjustment
relates to the classification of NHE's leases between operating leases and finance leases in accordance with -
IAS 17; and 1he|r cccounhng freatment. in accordance with 1AS 40. (investment properiies) and 1AS 16
(ope;'qted properhes) Deten‘rnnohon of the dassification of each of NHP's leases is currently underway:

RICHARD MIDMER
Finance Director
7 December 2004
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~ Board of

SIR JOHN MARTIN KIRBY
LAING CBE :

Non-executive Group Chairman,
aged 62, hos broad experience in
and knowledge of the pioperty. -
sector, both in the UK and
oversens. He holds and has held
office in various industry, rade,
academic and chariigble _
orgonisations. He is a director of

Eskmuir Properties Limited. He was .

oppointed g hon-executive
Director of the Company on

21 December 1998 and became
Choirman on 2 March 1999,

BILL COLVIN :
Chief Executive, aged 46, has
overall executive responsibility fo
the Board for the Group’s
odhivities. He was Finance Director
of British-Bomeo Oil & Gas Plc
from 1992 15 1999, He isalso g
non-executive director of Sondex
Plc and Chairman of CustomVis
Ple. He is a Scottish Charlered
tant. He was appointed an
executive Director of the Company
on 18 January 2000 and jook
over as Chief Execufive on
20 November 2000. _

RICHARD NEIL MIDMER

Group Finance Director, aged 50,
is also responsible for the property
division. He was previously in the
<onstruction and oil and gas
seclors. A civil engineer by
training, he was Treasurer and
Finance Director of Brifish-Bomeo
Gil & Gas Pic from 1997 1o
2000. He was appointed an
execulive Director of the Company
on 20 November 2000,

Top ef: Coumiy Homes - Wil

Directors

JOHN MURPHY - -

Execuive Direcior and Chief
Executive of Highfield Care, aged
48, is responsible for the
operating division. He was
previcusly Group Operations
Director of idun Health Core
responsible for gll operations,
company development and
strategy from 1997 io 2002. He
begon his career in catering ond
hospitality before moving into
operational management i the
care home industry some 16 years
ago. He was appointed an
executive Director of the Company
on 30 January 2003,

CLAYTON HUGO WYNNE
ROBSON :

Non-executive Director, aged 72,
kas long and brood experignce in
the comporate finance and banking
sectors. He is cumently Chairman
of Welsh Gold Ple. He wos
appointed o non-executive
Director of the Compony an

1 May 1996 and has been the
senior non-executive Diractor since
16 February 2002. He js
Chaiman of the Company’s
Remuneroiion Committee and o
member of its Audit Commitiee.

LORD SUTHERLAND
Non-executive Direclor, aged 43,
has a wealth of knowledge and
experience in education and
healthcare, He is cumently
Chaiman of the Quarry Products
Association and was unti] recently
the Principol ond Vice-Chancellor
of the University of Edinburgh.

He was the Chaimnan of the

Mo 24 €T

govemment's Royal Commissian
ort Lang-term Care, He wos
appointed a non-executive
Director of the Company on

14 May 2001 and is o member
of the Company’s Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination
Committees.

RONALD ANDREW HENDERSON
Non-executive Director, aged 58,
he is currently Group Finance
Director of Network Rail Lirited
and non-executive Dirackor of
Scipher pic. He was appoinied o
non-executive Director of the
Company on 6 December 2001.
He is Chainman of the Company’s
Audit Committee and member
of its Remuneration Commiitiee,

NANCY JANE HOLLENDONER
Non-executive Direcior, aged 49,
is currently o healthcare sector
consultont fo the financial
services industry. She was
previously with LBS’ equity
reseorch division in Londan as
furopeon healthcare sector
analyst. She wos non-exacutive
Choimmon of NHP Healtheare
Partnierships Limited, our specialist
care subsidiary, uat its disposal
on 23 March 2004. She was
appointed & non-executive
Direcior of the Company on

27 February 2003 and is o
member of the Company’s

Audit Commitee,




T Sit John Madin Kirby Loing GBE
2 Bill Gobvin

3 Richard Neil Midmer

. 4 John Murphy

5 Cayton Hugo Wynne Robson
6 Lord Sutheddond

7 Ronald Andrew Henderson

8 Ny Jong Hollendoner
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited financial statements for the vear
ended 30 September 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are the purchase and retention of freehold and long leasehold interests, in
modern, purpose-built care homes together with the operation by Highfield Care of nursing and residential
homes. : ' o

The principa! actiﬁity of the Company is to act as a holding company which conducts corporate activities on
behalf of the Group.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A review of the development of the Group's business, including future prospects, is set out in the Chairman’s
statemertt on pages 4 to 6 and the Chief Executive's, Highfield Care and Financial Reviews on pages B to 20.
Events occurring after the balance sheet date are reported in note 35 to the accounis on page 70.

OFFER :

On 29 November 2004, TBG CareCo Limited, an affiliated company of The Blackstone Group, made a formal
Offer 1o acquire 100 per cent. of the issued and to be issued share capital of the Company at a cash price of
260.0p per Ordinary Share. The Offer document was mailed to shareholders on 9 December 2004,

RESULTS C
~ The resutts for the year ended 30 September 2004 are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on
page 38.

DIVIDENDS
An interim dividend of 3.0p per Ordinary Share (2003: 0.75p) was paid to shareholders on 14 june 2004, The
Directors do not propose a final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2004 (2003: 2.25p).

DIRECTORS
A brief statement on each of the current Directors, their responsibilities and experience, is set out on page 22 of
. this report. All the Directors served throughout the year ended 30 September 2004.

The Directors' beneficial shareholdings at 30 September 2004, and at 30 September 2003, were as follows:

Crdinary shares

2004 2003

£'000 £:000
Sir Martin Laing 9,049 9,049
W Colvin 20,000 20,600
R N Midmer 5,000 5,000
J Murphy 14,705 14,705
C H W Robson 44,519 44,519
Lord Sutherland o : 5,886 5,886
R A Henderson 5,000 5,000
N J Hollendoner 3,500 -
Total - : 107,659 104,159

The market price-of the Ordinary Shares at the end of the year was 234.5p and the quoted price during the year
ranged from 128.0p to 248.0p.

No Director had a beneficial interest in the shares of any subsidiaries of NHP Pic.

- There have been no changes to any of these Directors’ interests between 30 September 2004 and the date of
. this report with the exception of C H W Robson whose wife has acquired 4,950 Ordinary Shares in the Company.
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No. 2719860

Directors’ Report (Continued |

There were no grants to the executive Directors under the Company's Share Option Schemes during the year
under review, details of their current holdings are shown in the Directors’ remurieration report on page 31.

Except as stated in note 34 to the Accounts on page 69, none of the Directors had an interest in any material
contract during the year relating to the business of the Group.

Article 103 of the Articles of Association requires that one third of the Directors retire at the Annual General
Meeting in every year.

R N Midmer and Lord Sutheriand retire by rotation at the 12th Annuat General Meeting in accordarce with Article
:109 of the Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

C H.W Robson is aged 72 and is not due to retire by rotation, but in accordance with the Company's Articles of
~ Association, Article 108, he is re-elected annually. He offers himself for re-election.

In addition to the routine business, the following special business will be ransacted at the 12th Annual General
Meeting to be held on 24 February 2005 at 9.30 am:

RESTRICTED DISAPPLICATION OF PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS (RESOLUTION 7)

The proposed special resolution will give the Directors a limited authority to issue equity shares for cash other
than to existing shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings notwithstanding the pre-emption provi-
sions of Section 89 of the Companies Act 1985 ("the Act”). This limited authority wouid allow the Directors to
make such issues provided they do not exceed in aggregate an amount equal to 5 per cert. of the issued share
capital of the Company. The resolution also contains provisions enabling the Directors to take action to
-overcome certain practical difficulties that could arise in the case of a rights issue. The atithority in Resolution 7
will expire at the conclusion of the AGM to be held in 2006 or 30 April 2006, whichever is the earlier.

PURCHASE BY THE COMPANY OF ITS OWN SHARES (RESOLUTION 8)

The Directors consider that it would be advantageous for the Company to be granted the authority to allow the
use of the Company's available cash resources to acquire its own shares in the market. Accordingly, a special
resolution is proposed to authorise the purchase in the market of up to 10 per cent. of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company at a price of not more than 105 per cent. of the average of the middle markst guotations for
the ordinary shares of the Company (as derived form the London Stock Exchange Daily List) for the five business
days prior to the date of puschase.

The Directors do not intend to exercise the Company’s power to purchase its own shares other than in
circumstances where they consider this to be in the shareholders’ interests and where this would resuit in an
increase in eamings pes share.,

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS .

As at 6 Decernber 2004, the Directors had received notifications under the Companies Act that the following had
an interest in '3 per cent. or more of the issued Ordinary Shares of the Company:

. - ) Noof % of issued
’ ’ ’ Ordinary Shates share capital

Schroder Investment Management 23,415,944 11.3%
‘ Barclays Global Investors 18,990,647 9.1%
Lansdowne Partriers 14,383,214 6.9%
| Merrill Lynch Investment Managers 10,508,821 5.1%
Morley Fund Management 10,111,164 4.9%
‘ M & G Investment Management : 10,039,338 4.8%
Henderson Giobal fnvestors 8,802,656 4.7%
Legal & General Investment Management ' 6,725,184 3.2%
F&C Asset Managesnent ‘ 6,538,382 31%
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

PAYMENT TO CREDITORS

The Group's policy is to fix payment terms when agreeing the terms of each wansaction. It is the Group's
generat policy to pay suppliers in accordance with the agréed terms and conditions, provided that the supplier
" has complied with those terms. The creditor days for the Group at 30 September 2004, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985, were 25 (2003: 30). Credltor days for the Company at 30 September 2004 were
15 (2003: 26).

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES -

The Group supports the principal of Equal Opportunities in employment and opposes all forms of unfair and
unlawful discrimination. The Group's employment policies are designed to atiract, retain and motivate the-very
*-best people, recognising that this can be achleved only through offering equal opportunities regardless of
gender, race, religion or disabilty. .

The Group also recognises the contribution of a highiy motivated staff to its continued success. All staff are

- éncoUraged to develop their careers through the funding of appropriate training and qualifications.

. DISABLED STAFF -

It is the Group's policy that disabled persons should be considered for employment, fraining, career development
on the basis of their abilities and aptitudes in common with all staff . The Group will take all steps practicable to
ensure that staff who become disabled during the time they are employed by the Group are able to continue to
perform their duties and are afforded the same Wraining, career development and promotion opportunities as
other staff members.

EMPLOYEE OOMUNIGAHONS

The Directors recognise the importance of good communications and relations with the Group's staff, Intemal
newsletiers are distributed regularly to keep staff informed at all fevels. The operating division issues a newsletter
each month to the Highfield Care homes.

The Group places great importance on keeping its staff informed of the Group's activities, financial performance
and the economic-and financial factors affecting the Group's performance by regular newsletters and formal and
informal meetings. The NHP Pic Inland Revenue Approved and Unapproved Executive Share Option Schemes
and the Inland Revenue Approved Savings Related Share Opticn Scheme are intended to help develop
. employee inerests in the Company’s perfformance.

'CHARITABLE DONATIONS
No political donations were made during the year (2003 £nil). Charitable donations made to third parties in
2004 toialled £21,570 (2003 £1.876).

Since 2002, the Company has matched pound for pound funds raised by the residents and staff of each care
home operated by Highfield Care. These funds have been utilised to provide extra treats for the residents of the
-homes and also to support local community initiatives. So successful and popular has this programme become
that, between Highfield Care's residents and staff and the Company's support, a total of over £1 mitlion has
been raised 1o date,

AUDITORS

Deloitie & Touche LLP have expressed their willingnéss to be reappointed as auditors to the Company,
and a resolution for their appointment will be proposed at the 12th Annual General Meeting to be held on
24 February 2005.
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Directors’ Report (Contied)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

United Kingdom Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the end of the financial
year and of the profit or loss of the Group for that periad. In preparing those financial statements, the Directors
are required to:

» Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and :

* State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject 1o any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial staternents.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and the Group, and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with Companies. Act 1885. They are also responsible for the Group's system of internal
financial control, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

By Order of the Board

Company Secretary
7 December 2004

Registered Office: Block A, Upper Ground Floor, Dukes Court, Duke Street, Woking GU21 5BH
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

This report is presented by the Remuneration Commitiee under its delegated powers contained in its Terms of
Reference {copy available on request from the Comipany Secretary) and has been prepared in accordance with
the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 as well as the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority and the Companies Act 1985. A resolution to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting. :

The reguiations require the exiemal auditors to report to the Compary's members on the auditable section of
this report and to state whether in their opinion that part of the report has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985. Therefore this report has been divided into separate sections, pages 28 1o 30
contamlng the unaudited information and pages 30 and 31 contalmng the audited information.

INTRODUCTION :

The Remuneration Commitiee is directly responsible 1o the Company's shareholders and, as in previous years,
its Chairman will be: present at the AGM to answer any questions from shareholders and offer himself for re-elec-
tion. The Committee sits at least three times in each year, defiberating and making recommendations to the Board
an the remuneration policy of the Company Chairman and of the executive Directors. It also monitors the level
and structure of the remuneration for senior staff. The Committee members’ atiendance is shown on page 33,
The members of the Committee are the non-executive Directors, C H W Robson {Chainman), Lord Sutherland
and R A Henderson. The Committee retains New Bridge Street Consuttants 1P for independent advice on pay
and remuneration policy and atso consults with Sir Martin Laing, Chairman of NHR when appropriate, except in
matters conceming his own remuneration. New Bridge Street Consultants LLP do not provide advice on any other
sesvices to the Company. All the non-executive Directors are deemed to be independert notwithstanding their

_current participation in the 1998 NHP Pic Infand Revenue Approved Save As You £arn Share Option Scheme

{the "SAYE Schemme"} and their shareholdings in the Company as showr on pages 31 and 24 respectively.
REMUNERATION POLICY

The Commitiee considers the following criteria as guidance for its recommendations to the Board on salaries,
bonuses; and long term incentive plans. A significant proportion of Directors” remuneration is designated to be
performance-reiated through bonuses and share aptions. In determiining remuneration poficy, the Committee’s
objective is to ensure the Group continues o be able o atract, motivate and retain individuals with the
experience and skills required 10 operate the business competitively in the best interests of its shareholders. The
executive Directors do not play any part in the determination of their own remuneration package and the
fees of the non-executive Directors are set by the executive Directors reflecting the time commitment and the
responsibility expected from them

Salaries

It is our policy to offer salaries that are competitive and suffi c1ent to atiract the best executives possible to run a
diversified and complicated company whilst taking into account each individual's responsibilities, experience and
performance. These are reviewed annually.

Bonuses -

Short-term bonuses are offered annually. These are based on the amount by which key financial measures exceed
the previous year's figures. These can be up to 50 per cent. of salary when the performance figures have been
met. In addition, it is in the powes of the Committee to award discretionary bonuses when the year's resufts
are completed.

Highield bonus scheme — John Murphy

Foliowing the growth of Highfield Care a separate cash bonus scheme has been introduced for John Murphy
and his senior executive team for the 2004/5 financial year. The bonus will be triggered either by the change in
control or the 2004/5 financial year results, whichever is the earliest to occur. The bonus payments are subject
to chalienging profit targets for Highfieid determined by reference to the ievel of EBRIT, being the profits of
Highfield before rent, intefest and tax. Save in respect of a change of contral, the bonus payments will be paid
after the 2004/5 financia) year in three equal annual Instaiments, the first instalment to be made as soon as
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Directors’ Remuneration Report Contined)

'poséible affter the 2004/5 financial year end and the remaining two payments being made after the 2005/6 and
2006/7 financial year ends. On a change of control any bonus will be paid by the Company as soon as it is
reasonably practicable to do so.

Share options

. Al executive Directors, along wnh ali other staff, are entitled to participate in the Inland Revenue Approved

" Savings Related Share Option Scheme. There were no further grants of share options to the executive Directors

* under the NHP Pic 2001 Inlarid Revenue Approved and Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme (the "2001

* Scheme”) in the perlod being reparted. For previous grants, the Committee chose to use share price targets to
determine whether the options are exercisable because it was felt this was the best way of aligning executives

‘and Shamhoidefs interests during the Company's recovery. :

The performance gaphs ‘below show NHP’s Total Shareholder Retum performance compared to the FTSE
- mid-250 Index over a) the last five financial years and b) over the period since November 2000 when W Colvin
andR N Midmes were appointed. The Committee chose the FTSE mid-250 Index as they consider it to be the
“most appropriate comparator of which the Company is cumently a constitLent,

Sharehqlderrehnuiastﬁvayears Shareholder retums since 20 November 2000

VALK (§) SOUREE: THOMSON FINANCIA, ' - VALE(S) SOURTE: THOMSON FINANCAL
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These graphs show the value by 30 September 2004 of £100 invested in NHP on 30 September 1999 or
20 November 2000 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE Mid 250 Index for either period.

- EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The exécutive Directors have 12 month rolling contracts of employment subject to 12 months’ notice on either
side. The Company pays an extra 20 per cent. of their basic salaries only as a contribution to their defined
benefit pension arangements. Each has the right to a fully expensed company car and is reimbursed on all
expenses incurred wholly on the business of the Company. They also receive long-term disability insurance, death
in service cover and personal medical insurance, The executive Directors may not hiold outside appointments or
directorships without .the permission of the Board in writing. On termination of their contracts, they are not
entitled to compensation outside their contractual obligations of 12 months’ salary, 20 per cent. pension
contribution, use of Company car, and approved expenses.

The date of the commencement of their current contracts is as follows

W Calvin 9 November 2000
R N Midmer 9 November 2000
J Murphy 4 October 2002
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Directors’ Remuneration Repott (Continued)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the non-executive Directors is determined by the executive Directors within the timits set out
in the Articles of Association and is based upon independent surveys of fees paid to non-executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors do not have contracts of employment but provide services pursuant © letters of
appointment. They may be paid for professional sefvices provided to the Group, but cannot participate in the
-Company’s annual bonus plan or Executive Share Option Schemes; nor are they eligible to_join the Company's
pension scheme. In the past, non-executive Directors have been eligible to participate in the SAYE Scheme.
However, on 29 January 2004 the Board decided the non-executive Directors would no longer be eligible to
participate in any further offers under the SAYE Scheme. The existing grants held by non-executive Directors under
the SAYE Scheme will continue to maturity. All Direciors offer themselves for election every three years with the
exception of C H W Robson who stands for élection every year as he is over 70.

The followmg information has been audited.

Details of the Difectors’ emolumerts for the year ended 30 Septerber 2004, with comparative amounts for the
year ended 30 Septerber 2003, are as follows:
for the For the

yearended  year ended
30 Sep 2004 30 Sep 2003

Salary Aggregate Pensicn Total - Towal
and fees Bonus Benefits  emoluments  contributions emoluments  emoluments
£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Executive Directors _ .
W Colvin 310,000 195,000 19,975 524,975 62,000 586,975 387,191
R N Midmer 250,000 160.000 23,160 433,160 50,000 483,160 312,708
J Murphy. : 220,000 142,000 25,224 387224 44,000 431,224 255425
D F Francis - - - - - - 176,903

Non-executive Directors

Sir Martin Laing, Chairman 60,000 - - 80,000 - B0000 52,500
C H W Robson 30.000 - - 30,000 - 30,000 25,000
Lord Sutherland 30,000 - - 30,000 - 30,000 25,000
R A Henderson 30,000 - - 30,000 - - 30,000 25,000
N J Hollendones™ 57,500 - - . 57500 - 57,500 16,874
Total 987,500 497,000 68,359 1,552859 156,000 1,708,859 1.276,601

* Included in the fees paid to N J Hollendoner are additional fees of £27,500 in her capacity as non-exectttive
Chairman of the specialist division.

N J Hollendoner was appointed as non-executive Chairman for the Company's specialist division, NHP
Healthcare Partnerships Limited, on 29 September 2003. This division was subseguently sold in March 2004.

In addition, W Colvin is a non-executive Director of Sondex Plc and CustomVis Pic. Mr Colvin has received fees
of £21,666.68 from Sondex Plc and £43,533.00 from CustomVis Plc for the year to 30 September 2004, which
he retains.
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Detals of share opions held by the direciors during the year vers:

 Scheme - At10d
(seebelow) 2003" Gronted Exercised

lped "2 g swneoble

EXP"'V

SiMatin lofiig L 185770 0~ -
W Cobin s - -
' §3.300. - -
. 2,060, 9?8 - -

320,500 - -
w3 - -
83,300 - -

1373952 - - -

365800 - -

256,400 - -
10,300 - -
31,250 - -

718,232, - - -

R N Midmer

) Murphy

C H W Robson
R A Henderson
Lord Sutherland
'N 4 H@Ilendoner .

10,300 - -

17,733 - -

1 -——wmm—a'wwwm-e.,mw_wnz—r?

4573000 - -

21600 - -

10,300 - -

" 15770° 7 107.00p 01.02.05

- 17,738 8. s'op 01.08.08.

13,1004
14.09.04
01.10.05
6 2B.08.06

— 1,373952 14.09.04

- 5800 8200 011005

- 256400 - 12050p 28.08.06
- 10300 89.80p 01.08.06
- 31250 96000 10.12.05
- 718232  9050p 10.12.05
- 211,600 12050p 28.08.06
- 10400° 89.80p 01.08.06

01.08:06
13.10.04.

- 10300 .89.80p 01.08.06
- 1'7,733_‘ 8980p 01.08.08

01.08.05

01.02.09

121001

13.09.11

-30.09.12

27.0813

1010207

12.10.11
13.09.11
30.09.12
27.08.13
03.02.07
09.12.12
09.12,12
27.08.13
01.0207 .
01.02.07
01.02.09

Schemes 1. NHP Plc 1998 Intend Appmved Savings

Chairmon "~ .-
Remunergtion Committee
7 Decel:nber 2004

Related Shore Ophon Scheme - the non-executive
Directors will complete their current contradis and then will no longer pqmupuie in the scheme.

2. NHP Plc 2001 inland Revenue Approved Executive Shore Option Sdmme
3.NHP Plc 2001 Unopproved Executive Share Ophon Scheme.
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Statement on Corporate Governance

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors considess that the Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 September
2004 with the provisions of the Combined Code, as annexed to The Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority, as it applied prior to 1- November 2003. During the year, the Board has considered and largely
implemented the additional actions that will ensure fulure compliance with the Combined Code, as it applies for
reporting periods commencing on or after 1 November 2003 (the ° *Revised Combined Code").

This statement describes how the Board of Directors is applying the principles of corporate governance set out in
“both the existing and the Revised Combined Code. The headings in this statement, other than the final four, are
taken from Section 1 of the Rewsed Combined Code that applies to listed companies.

DlRﬂ:l'ORS

The Board

The Board cmently comprises the Chairman plus three executive and four non-executive Directors. The
respective biographies appear on page 22.

The Company Secretary maintains a list of the key matters and decisions reserved for approval by the Board. The
latter includes formutation of the Group's. business sirategy; approval of annual budget and business pians;
approval of reported financial statemenis and dividends; approval of major capital investment and disposal
proposals; and formulation of Group policies. The full list is available upon request from the Company Secretary.

Responsibility for implementing the Group's business strategy is delegated to the executive Directars. The Board
has also established three Board Committees, each with its own writlen terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Commitiees are available on request from the Company
Secretary. The role of these Committees is described in more detail below.

. Chairman and Chief Executive

The Chairman and Chief Executive have separate written accountabilities that are clearly defined and that have
been approved by the Board. The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, setting its agenda and
ensuring its effectiveness. The Chief Executive is respon5|ble for leadership of the business and implementation of
the business strategy.

Board balance and independence

The Board comprises a balance of executive and non-executive Directors such that no individual or small group
of individuals can dominate the Board's decision taking. The Board considers that it contains the requisite
diversity of skitls and experience to-further the interests of the Company’s shareholders and stakeholders.

The nominated Senior Independert Director is C H W Robson, who is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Board considers that notwithstanding his length of service as a non-executive Director (9 years)
_ Mr Robson remains independent in character and judgement and continues to be committed to the role he
performs for the Company. .

The Board considers that notwithstanding their shareholdings in the Company (see page 24), which are regarded
as immaterial, and additional fees of £27,500 paid to NJ Hollendoner in her capacity as non-executive Chairman
of the Company's specialist division (see page 30). all of the non-executive Directors are independent in
character and judgement and are therefore independent within the meaning of the Revised Combined Code.

Appointments to the Board

The Nomination Committee appointed by the Board is responsible for ongoing review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board; for making recommendations. to the Board on the appointment of executive and
non-executive Directors, and their re-appointment following retirement by rotation; and for ensuring that
succession planning is in place.

Top fet: Dingle Meadow Care Centre — West Midkands
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Statement on Corporate Govemance (Continved)

The Nomination Committee meets formally at least once a year and at such other times as the Chairman of the

Committee shall require. Membership of the Committee comprises of the Company Chairman, the Chief

Executive and one independent non-executive Director, the latter cumently being Lord Sutherland. The quorum
for meetlngs i Wo.

Information and pmhwmal developmem
- Directors receive induction on joining the Board and all Drrectors are offered training o update their skills
and knowledge : .

The Board receives regular information in a form and of a qualty that it considers appropriate to enable It o
discharge its duties.

- Al Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring
.~ that Board and Commitiee procedures are followed and that the Group and Board operate within applicable
legistation, rules and regulations. Procedures are in place for the Directors to take independent professional

- advice, at the Company's expense, should this be required.

Performance evaluation ‘

Under the guidance of the Company”s Chairman, individual members of the Board recently completed a survey
evaluating the activities and effectiveness of the Board and its Commitiees. The results of this survey were
discussed at the Board meeting held in September 2004. Whilst the survey indicated that the Board and its
Committees were operating effectively, it was agreed that an improved evaluation process should be developed
and infroduced in the course. of the coming year.

The Revised Combined Code's requirement to submit Directors for reappointment at regular intervals is met by
virue of applying the Company’s Articles of Association.

~ Directors appointed by the Board are required to submit themselves for election at the first opporiunity after their
appointment and thereafter for re-election at least every three years, One third of the Directors are required
to retire at the Annual General Meeting in every year, and every Director aged 70 years or more is to be
re-elected'annually.

The following table shows the number of scheduled Board and Committee meetings held in 2004 and the
number atiended by their respective members:

Non-executive

) Board Directors Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Nomber of mestings held 6 1 4 1 3
Number of meetings attended: -
Sir Mantin Laing - 6 n/a n/a 1 n/a
W Colvin 6 n‘a n/a 1 nfa
R N Migmer 6 nfa na n/a nfa
J Murphy- 6 n/a nfa nfa n/a
C H W Robson 6 1 4 n/a 3
R A Henderson 6 1 4 na 3
Lord Sutherland 6 1 3 1 3
N J Hollendoner 6 1 4 n/a nfa

All Directors attended the Annual General Meeting held in January 2004.
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Statement on Corporate Governance (Continued)

REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee appoirited by the Board makes recommendations to and determines on the
Board’s behalf all aspects of pay and benefits of the Company Chairman and the executive Directors, and also
sets the remuneration and incentive policies of the Group as a whole.

The Remuneration Comemittee comprises only non-executive Directors. The current Chairman of the Committee
is CHW Robson and its other members are Lord Sutherland and RA Henderson. The Remuneration Committee
meets formally at least three times a year and at such other times as the Chairman of the Committee shall require.
The quorum for meetings is two.

Desails of the Directors’ remunesation required to be disclosed under the existing and Revised Combined Code
and the Director’s Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on
pages 28 to 31.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board is satisfied that it conttnues to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company's
financial position and prospects. not only in respect of statutory reports and accounts but also in respect of
intesiem reports, reports 1o regulators and public disclosures of price sensitive information.

A summary of the Directors’ responsibilities for the financial staterments is set out on page 27.

~ The "going concem” statement required by the Revised Combined Code is set out on page 36.

The Board is ulimately responsible for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing the effectiveness
of these controls. The system of interral control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of not

~ -achieving business objectives and can only provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance against material
_Misstaterment or loss.

The Board considers that it has an appropriate organisational structure for planning, executing, controlling and
monitoring business operations in order to achieve the Group's objectives. Lines of responsibility and fimits of
- authority are clearly defined.

The Board has in place ongoing systems for the identification, evaluation and management of significant
risks. The Board, through its Audit Commitiee, has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of the
~ Group's system of internat control and is satisfied that its review is compliant with the Turnbull Report for the
period since 1 October 2003. The review included financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management systems.

The Group operates an intemal audit function reporting to the Group Finance Director but subject to review
by the Audit Committee. Al intermal audit reports are submitted to the Audit Cormmittee for their review
_and consideration.

The Group and each operating company have comprehensive systers for reporting financial results, all of which
are monitored by the executive Directors. Financial results, including a detailed balance sheet analysis, are
reviewed on a monthly basis with comparisons against budget. The twelve month profit and cash flow forecasts
are reviewed on a quarterly basis. Treasury reporting is reviewed on a monthly basis. Tenant performance
indicators (including our own operating business) are reviewed monthly All forecasts are reviewed quarterly and
revised as necessary.

Top left: Glan-yr-afon Care Cntre — Merthyr Tydfil
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Statement on Corporate Governance (Continued)

Audit Committes and auditors

Under the Revised Combined Code, the Board has an obligation to establish formal and transparent

arrangements for considering how they should apply the financial reporting and intemal control principles and
for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s external auditors. The Board meets this
obligation through its Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee comprises only. non-executive Directors. The current Chairman of the Committee is
R A Henderson, who has the recent and relevant financial experience called for by the Revised Combined Code,
and its other members are C H W Robson, Lord Sutherland and N J Hollendoner. The Audit Committee meets
formally at least fodr times a year and at such other times as the Chainman of the Committee shall require. Senior
representatives of the extemal auditors as well as members of the Group's executive management and internal
audit function are invited to attend meetings on a regular basis. Meetings are held at appropriate times in the
're'porting and audit ¢ycle, and are heid at least two working days prior to a Board meeting where financial
statements are to be approved. The quorum for meetings is two.

The Audit Committee monitors the integrity of the financial statements of the Company (including its annual and
interim reports) and annuglly reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of intemal controt and risk
management. it also considers the appoiniment, terms of engagement and remuneration of the external
auditors, together with a review of their independence, objectivity and effectiveness. The Audit Committee receives
reports on the system of internal financial controls from the Group's internal audit function,

The Company 5 extemal auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, also perform non-audi services for the Group over and
above the external audit. The Audit Committee monitors the appointment of the external auditors for such
purposes and remains confident that the objectivity and independence of the external auditors is not impaired in
any way by reason of their further services. :

The Audit Committee is satisfied that appropriate “whisfle-blowirig” -arrangements are in place whereby staff of
the Group may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or
other mattess.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Dialogue with institutional shareholders

. The executive Directors are primarily responsible for investor refations and regularly making contact with

institutional and other shareholders in an effort to maintain open and effective dialogue. The Chairman, the
Senior Independent Director and the other non-executive Directors are also available to meet with shareholders
to review strategy or to discuss corporate govemnance and other matters of concern.

"Regular repons are made to the Board on the number and types of meetings between the Company and

shareholders. Analyst and broker notes are also circulated to all members of the Board.

The Group maintains a website — www.hhprops.co.uk — which is regularly updated and contains live links to other
sites containing up to date investor information, The website makes available the latest published accounts of the
NHP Pic Group as welt as information an the performance of the three bond issues involving the Group. The site
has become the most frequently used channel of communication with private investors.

Constructive use of the AGM :

The Company’s Annual General Meeting is the principal opportunity for shareholders to question the Directors
and Chairmen of the Board Commitiees, both formally and informally. All Directors of the Company are
expected to atend the Annual General Meeting.
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Resolutions and proxy voles arg dealt with ot ihq Annudl ngg;_l_'ql Meeting in accordance with ihe provisions of
ﬂTeRevsedCthnedCodgL"" e Ay e M TR .

) 'bl:z qnd sustltncble business that glways takes account of the social
und enwronmentqi context in whlcb i ope_ _ﬁs: :

The Group is o major suppoder of {undn:uslng intfigtives in the homes it operdies and hos also promded kit
sponsorshlp to locul youth spoﬂs }ecms |n many of 1he communﬂles in whlch it hus a pr&oence

eracts with the. environment und uses resources in a
, iU, pmd:oal use of recydung and sugtqmable

- qug.t;i AND SAFETY
Tﬁ‘e Bourd is awctre ofits: :e,sponsnblimes towords its emp!oye&: and all users of ihe Group's services in health and

' 4 CuresHeciﬁl&Sufeiypallcthsbeenmlledouttoa!ldscarehom&sundthepurpose :
; icj;is 1o ensure “complionce with the appropriote legislative requlremenis qssoaaied with the operation

= The&anr;l hes adopted a formal Code of Ethics coveting fhe Group.. The Code provides comprehensive

- gui lines 1o all employees o o the stundurd of business edhics exp@ded from them os representatives of the
- Groyp. 't also recognises the 1mportance to the Group of opemhng 1o the hlghest posmble ethicol standards,
bqurgng in mlndﬂwenqiure oftbesemces cﬁered byGruup ondthe needsofdschenis

- The nadors hovmg made qppropricte enquiries, are satished thot the Group has adequate. resources to
confinue in operofian for The fom:eeuble future ond so oonhnue to odopi the going congem basis in preparing
, iheftmncmfsfdemenfs

R A Henderson
- Chainmon
: AUdi! Committee o .
7 Deoamber 2004 _ —
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: Independenf Audifors’ Report

1o the members of NHP Ple

We hove audited the financiol statements of NHP Plc for the year ended 30 September 2004 which comprise the
consolidated profit and loss account, the bolonce sheets, the consolidoted cash flow stalement, the consolidated
statement of folal recognised gains ond losses, the consolidated reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds,
the consofidated note of historical cost profits and losses and the related notes 1 1o 35. These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We have also oudited the information in the part of the
Directors” remuneration report that is described os having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Compony’s members, as o body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985. Our gudit work has been underfaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we
are required to state 1o them in on auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility fo anyone other thon the Company ond the Compony’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we hove formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As described in the stotement of Directors’ responsibililies, the Company’s Direclors are respensible for the preparation
of the financial stafements in accordonce with opplicable United Kingdom fow and accounting standards, They are also
responsible for the preparotion of the other informotion conlained in the annual report including the Direciors’
remunerction report. Cur responsibility is fo audit the financiol sialemenis ond the port of the Direclors” remuneration
report described as having been audited in accordance with refevant United Kingdom legal and regulatory requirements
and audthng shundulds

We report to you our opinion as fo whether the financial statemenfs give a rue and fair view and whether the financiol
statements and the part of the Direciors” remunergtion report described os having been audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Direcfors” report is
not consistent with the fingncial statements, if the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information ond explanafions we require for our audit, or if information specified by fow regarding
Directors” remuneration and transactions with the Company and other members of the Group is not disclosad.

We review whether the corporole govemaonce statement reflects the Compony’s compliance with the seven provisions of
the Combined Code spedified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Setvices Authority, and we report if it does
not. We are not required ta consider whether the Board's siatements on infemal control cover all risks and controls, or form
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's caparate govemance procedures or ils risk and convol procedures.

We read the Directors’ report and the other information contained in the annuot report for the above year as described
in the confents section induding the unaudited part of the Directors’ remuneration repor and consider the implicotions
for our report if we become aware of any apporent misstotements or matesiol inconsistencies with the financiol stotements.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom auditing stondords issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes’ examination, on a fest bosis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
stotements and the part of the Directors” remuneration report described as having been audited. |t also includes an
assessment of the significant esfimates ond judgements made by the Direclors in the prepargtion of the finonciol
statements ond of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently opplied ond odequalely disclosed.

 We planned and performed our audit so as to obiain oll the information and explanations which we considered

_necessaty in order o' provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assuronce that the financict siatements and
the part of the Direclois’ remuneration report deseribed as having been audited are free from materia} misstatement,
whether caused by froud or other imegularity or error. In forming our opinion, we dlso evaluated the overall adequacy

- of the presestation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneraion report described
os hoving been audited. ‘ .

OPINION
- In our opinion:
the financial statemenis give o frue and fair view of the state of offdirs of the Compony ond the Group as ot
30 September 2004 and of the profit of the Group for the year then ended; and the financial statements and the part
of the Direclors’ remuneration report. described as having been oudited have been properly prepared in accordance
 with the Companies Act 1985.

—Dﬂ-‘ﬁﬁ &Tw\QA LLC

DELOITTE & TOUCHE Lk

Charlered Accountonts and Registered Auditors
London

7 December 2004
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Cohsolidaied Profit and Loss Account

For the year ended 30 Seplember 2004
2004 2003

Note £000 £'000

Tumover 3 198,050 171,892
Cost of sales (107,001} (87,321
Gross profit 91,049 84,571
Depreciation and amortisation 5  (9,898) (6,348
Other administrative expenses: (20255)  (19,259)
Excepﬁonui operating income | 4 3,300 250
Administrative expenses - (26,853}  (25,357)
~ Group operofing profit - 5 64196 59,214
Share of associoted undertaking’s operating profit 4 28 32
Total éperating profit 3 64224 59,246
Profit on aisposa[ of fangible fixed assets 3,10 337
Net interest payable and similar charges 7 (31,714} (34,827
Profit on ordinary adlivities before taxation 35620 24,756
Tax (charge)/credit on profit on ordinary adfivities 8 (3,798) 556
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 31,822 25312
Profii for the year 31,822 25312
Dividends paid 9 (6193 (6,088
‘Retained _proﬁ_t transferred to reserves 23 25,629 19,224

Earnmgs per Ordinary Share 10

Basic 15.5p 12.6p
Diluted 15.1p 12.2p

Tumover, operating profit and profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets are derived wholly from confinuing

operations.
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Balance Sheet

As at 30 Sephernber 2004
Group Com,
2004 2003 2004 2003
Noe £000 £000 £'000 £1000
Intongible fixed assels
Goodwill ' 12 1,938 2,053 - -
Tangible fixed assets
Investment properties 13 529,900 464,640 - -
Operated properties 13 362,235 271810 - -
Other fixed ossets i3 4,685 3,540 - -
oL 896,820 739920 - -
Inveshmients 14 147,318 139,880 191,561 191,589
Total fixed assets 1,046,076 881,923 191,561 191,589
Curvent assets
Properties hetd for resale - 2,328 - _
_ Debtors 15 16,664 19,258 38,778 35,849
Short ferm investments 16 20,084 19,33 - -
- Cash at bank and in hand 539 1,773 - -
— 37,287 42690 38778 35869
. Creditors _
Amounis falling due within one year 17 (34,153) (35185)  (4,324) 6,142
Net current assets 3,134 7505 34454 29,727
Total assets less current liabilities 1,049,210 889,428 226,015 221,316
Creditors.
Amounis falling due after more than one year 1% (543,817) (567.626) - -
Provisions for liabilities and charges 20 (1475  (1,261) [935) {274)
Net assefs 3 503918 320541 225,080 221,042
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 22 2,076 2,034 2,076 2,034
Share premium account 23 194,619 192,213 194,619 192,213
Revoluation reserve 23 241,692 86,306 - -
Revenue reserve 23 - - 914 914
Profit un_d loss account 23 65,53 39,988 27,47 25,881
- Total equity Shareholders’ funds 503,918 320541 225080 221,042
Net assets per Ordinary Share
Basic - : . 24 242.7p 157.6p
Dilyted 24 2355p 1518

These finuncidl stafements were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 December 2004.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Direcors.

”

’

W Colvin
-Chief Executive

R N Midmer
Finance Director

Top right: Stoncleigh Care Cenire — County Burhars
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the yeor ended 30 Seplember 2004
2004 2003
. Note £'000 £000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 26 74200 64,280
Retums on investments and semcmg of finonce
Interest paid - (38,671}  (40,321)
Other similar charges poid (nef) (181) 74
Interest received 1,095 787
Dividends recsived 39 32
Net cash outflow from.returns on investment and
_ servicing of ﬁnanoe (37,718  (39,574)
" Taxafion
Corporation tox (paid)/repaid i561) 190
Cuprhl expenditure and finaricial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (17,808}  {(11,324)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed asset properties (net of disposal costs) 13,863 3,128
Proceeds on dispasal of other tangible fixed assets 347 1,124
Proceeds on disposal of properties held for resole 34N 1,128
Net cash outflow from investing activities ' (185)  (5,94¢)
Acquisitions and disposals
Net cash acquired with subsidiary 158 -
Repayment of loan acquired with Abbeycourt Care Limited (1,139} -
Acquisition of Abbeycourt Care Limited. : (1,061} -
Net cush outflow from acquisitions (2,042) -
Equity dividends paid (10,769)  (1,512)
Net cash inflow before use of liquid resources and financing 22925 17436
Management of liquid resources
Shiort term deposit investment (nef} {753) (1,462)
Finoncing '
Equity
1ssue of Ovdinary Shares 2,448 1,347
Net cash inflow from equity financing 2,448 1,347
Hedging '
Premium paid for inferesf rofe cap (140} -
Bank loans
Bank loans drown down 17,004 37,700
Bank loans repaid {41,204} {55,915)
Less: Financing costs paid (197)  {1.204)
Net cash outflow from bank loan finance 24,3977 (19,419)
Other loan repaymenis (56) (298)
Finance lease repayments 11y (170
Net cash outflow from financing activities {22,156) (18,540}
increase/{decrease} in cash in the year 27 16 [2,566)
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Consolidated Stotement of Total Recogmsed Gains and Losses

For the yaor ended 30 Septarnber 2004
2004 2003
_ Note £000 £'000
~_Profit for the year’ _ 31,822 25312
o Net sufplus on revaluation of properties 23 155300 92,233

Totc_i[ recognised gaih_s for the year - 187,122 117,545

Consoliduted Reconcmahon of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

For the year anded 30 Septerber 2004
2004 2003
- £000 £1000
Profit for the year 31,822 25312
Dividends paid- ' (6,193) . {5,088}
Retained profit for the year 25629 19,224
Net §urp!us on revaluation of properties 155,300 92,233
lssue of share capital . 2,448 1,347
Net increase in shareholders' funds - ' 183,377 112,804
Shareholders' funds at the begi_nning of the year 320,541 207,737
Shareholders' funds ot the end of the yeor : 503,918 320,541
Consolidated Note of Historical Cost Profits and Losses
For the year ended 30 September 2004
2004 2003
_ £000 £000
Profit an ordinary acfivities before taxation 35620 24,756
Realisation of net valuation losses on disposal of fixed asset properties 0,164 (1,597)
Difference between an histon_‘icul cost depreciation charge and the
actual depreciafion charge for the year. o 1,078 1,123
.. Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 35534 24,282
Historical cost profit retained for the year _ 25,543 18,750

Top right: Trafalgar Park Core Centra — Mid-Glaorgan




Notes to the Accounis
For the year ended 30 Seplember 2004

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Bosis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment and operated properiies, and in accordance with all applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards. A summary of principal accounting policies, all of which have been opplied consistently during the
current and preceding year, is set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consclidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, together with
those of Care Homes No.1 Limited {*Care Homes 1"), Care Homes No.2 Limited (“Care Homes 2} and Care
Homes No.3 Limited {“Care Homes 3"). Care Homes ¥, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3 are not subsidiary
undertckings of the Group; however, by reason of coniraciual arangements between the Group and Care
Homes 1, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3, under FRS 5 “Reporfing the Substance of Transactions”, the
financial statements of Care Homes 1, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3 are required to be consclidated as
. part.of the Group. Summaries of the financial statements of Care Homes 1, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3
are disclosed in notes 30 to 32 of the financial siatements.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary and associated undertakings, representing any excess of the consideration
given over the fair value of the identifiable assefs and liabilities acquired, is copitalised and amortised on a straight
line basis over ifs estimated useful life. Goodwill on the acquisition of Highfield Holdings Limited in the year ended
30 September 2002 is being amoriised over 20 years. Goodwilt on the acquisition of Highfield Care Homes
.Limited and Highfield Care Homes No.3 Limited in the year ended 30 September 2001 is being amortised over
20 years. Goodwill on the acquisition of G.R. Patrick & Co. Limited in the year ended 30 September 1999 is
being amortised over 10 years. Provision is made for any impairment.

Valuation of land and buildings

Investment properties

The cost of invesiment properties is purchase cost, any incidental costs of acquisifion and the cost of capital
improvements. Investment properties represent freehold or long leasehold properties held for long térm retention.
In accordance with SSAP No.19 “Accounting for Investment Properties”, these investment properties are volued
annually at 30 September by quolified external voluers. The aggregote revaluation surplus or deficit is fransferred
to the revaluation reserve whilst any permanent diminuiion invalue is charged 1o the profit and loss account.

Operated properties _

Operaied properties, which are initially fransferred out of invesiment properties at the then existing use value, are
valued annually ot 30 September by qualified external voluers. The aggregate revaluation surplus or deficit is
transferred fo the revaluation reserve whilst any permanent diminufion in value is charged to the profit and loss
account.

Other fixed assets — land and buildings
The residential properties are held to provide accommodation to core employees of Highfield Care and are
revolued annually at 30 September by qualified extemal valuers.

Capital expenditure on the invesiment portfolio assets

Capital expenditure incurved on o leased care home which improves the physical condifion above the level

required in the lease and which enhances the property’s value is capitalised. Otherwise such capital expenditure
is-charged in the profit and'loss account.

Top boft: Bellefield Cora Contro — Liverpacl
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Notes to the Accounis (conmued)
For the ysor ended 30 Septamber2004

1 AMOUNI'ING FOI.ICIES {Continued}- :
- Copital expenditure on the operoted porlfohousseis

“. Copital expendiivre incurmed on dn operated care home which enhances the properiy’s volue or replaces an asset

which is fully depreciated is capitalised. Otherwise such capital expenditure is charged in the profit and loss account.

D -
In accordonce with SSAP No.19 “Accounting for Invesiment Properfies”, no depreciation is provided in respect of
investment properties. Under the terms of the Group's leases, freehold and long leasehold properties are required
to be maintgined to a high. standard by its tenants. The fact that no depreciation is provided in respect of
investment properties is a departure from the requirement of the Companies Adt 1985 which requires all fixed
assets to be depreciated over their effective useful lives. However, such properties are not held for consumption but
for investment, and the Directors consider thot systematic depreciation would be inappropriate and would nof give
a e and fair view. The accounting policy adopted and departure from the Companies Act 1985 is therefore
necessary for the accounts to give a true and fair view, Depreciation is one of the faciors reflected in the annual
revoluation, and omounts which might otherwise have been charged connot be separately idenfified or quantified.

Operated properties are depreciated in equol annual instalments over the esiimoted useful economic lives of
each category of asset. The amount of depreciation, the calculation of which is based on the opening valuation
plus subsequent copitalised capitol expenditure less estimated residual volue, is charged fo the profit ond loss
accourt with an appropriate odjustment being made to the revaluation reserve by the transfer of a sum from the
revaluation reserve fo the profit and loss account. The estimated useful economic lives are as follows:

Freehaold land no depreciation
Freehald and long leasehold buildings 50 years
Plant, machinery, fixtures and fitiings 5 1o 20 years

Land and buildings within other fixed assets are depreciated in equal instalments over the esfimated useful
economic lives of each category of asset. The amount of depreciation, the colculation of which is based on the
 valuation less estimated residual value, is charged fo the profit and loss account with an appropriate adjustment
made fo the revaluation reserve by the transter of a sum from the revaluation reserve to profit and loss account,
The estimated useful economic fives are as follows: '

Freehold land no depreciation
Freehold buildings 50 years

Other fixed assels are stated ot cost less depreciation which is provided at rates colculeoted o write off the cost in
equal amounts over their anficipated useful lives as follows:

Short leasehold irnprdvemenis " remaining period of lease
Office equipment and fudures 5 yeors

Moior vehicles - Syears

Invesiments

Except as stated below, investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impairment in value.

In the consolidated accounts, investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. The
consolidated profit and loss account indudes the Group's share of associates’ profits less losses, whilst the
Group's share of the nef assets of the associates is shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Goodwill arising
on the acquisiion is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out above. Any unomoriised balance of
goodwill is included in the canying value of the invesiment in associales.

Top sight: St Augustine's Court Care Centre — Notfingham
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Notes to the Accounts (Continved)
For the year ended 30 September 2004

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred taxation

Deferred fax is provided in full on timing differences which have originaied at the balance sheet date and which
could give rise fo an obligation $o pay more or less fax in the future. Deferred tox is measured af the average tax
rates that are expected o apply in the periods in which the fiming differences are expected to reverse, based on
#ax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the batance sheet date. Deferred tax is not
recognised in respect of gains and losses on revolued assefs unless the company has entered into a binding
agreement o sell the assets and the gains or losses have been recognised in the profit and loss account. Deferred
tox assefs are recognised o the extent that it is regarded more fikely than not that they will be recovered.

" Finance costs - o _

Cosis which are incurred directly in connection with the raising of bank loans or Secured Notes are amortised at

- a constant rate over the lives of the loan facility or Secured Notes in accordance with FRS 4 “Capital Instruments”.
Interest
Inferest receivable and inferest payoble are recognised in the financiol statements on an accruals basis. nterest
on Deposit Swap Agreements and Zero Coupon Bonds is accrued and capitalised on a monthly basis over their
respective lives. Discounts on Secured Notes, being interest paid in advance, are amortised over the lives of the
Secured Notes.

Leased assets . '

Assets held under finance leases, which confer rights and obligations similar o those oftached to owned assets,
are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and ore depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and their useful
lives. The capital elements of the future lease obligations are recorded as liabilities, whilst the interest elements
are charged o the profit and loss account over the period of the leases to produce a constant rate of charge on
the balance of capital repayments outsianding. Hire purchase transactions are dealt with similarly, except that
assefs are depreciated over their useful lives. '

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged 1o the profit and loss account on an accruals basis over the life
of the lease. '

Pensions
The Group contributes fo money purchase pension schemes for the executive Directors at the rate of 20 per cent.
of basic salary, which is charged monthly o the profit ond loss account.

~ The Company and its subsidiary undertaking, NHP Management Limited, contribute to the personal pensions of
their stoff ot rates up fo 15 per cent. of basic salary which is charged monthly to the profit and loss account.

A stokeholder pénéion scheme exists for all staff of the NHP Group.

Financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to interest rote movements in line with the
“Group's risk management policies. The Group does not enfer into derivative financiol instruments for speculative

purposes. Amounts payable or receivable in respect of interest rote swaps are recognised os adjustments to

inferest expense over the period of the contracts.

Top el st Gordens Coré Cont — Ross-shire
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Notes to the Accounts (Confinved
For the year endad 30 Septamber 2004 .

2 INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
Disclosures on Directors’ remuneration, share options and pension contibutions required by the Companies Act
1985, and those specified by the UK Lisfing Auvthority, are included on pages 30 and 31 within the Directors’
remuneration report and form part of these audited financial statements.
Staff costs
The aggregate payroll costs {including Directors) were as follows:

_ _ g ' 2004 2003

{restoted)}

. _ . £000 £'000
Wages and salaries : 82,753 49,292
Social security cosls - . 7411 5,356

Pension costs _ ' 487 571
' 90,651 75219

Average number of employees on a full time equivalent basis:

2004 2003

(restated)

. . Number  Number

Operational 5949 5589
Adminisfraﬁve : _ 100 109
Directors : : 8 9
' 6,057 5,707

Staff costs and the average number of employees have been restated o correct an error made for the year ended
30 September 2003. The figures as previously reporied were: wages and salaries of £72,632,000, social
security costs of £5,172,000 and the average number of operational employees of 6,019, The Group operates
a defined confibution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held seperately from the Group by a
seperately administered fund. Contributions made in the year were £94,000 (2003: £86,000).

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER, OPERATING PROFIT AND NET ASSETS
All operdfions are carried out wholly within the United Kingdom.

2004 2003
£9000 £000
Tumover
Properly business 44816 48,985
Higlifield Care _ : ' 153,234 122,907
' 198,050 171,892
Operating profit
Property business 61,954 61,284
Highfield Care 2,270 {2,038}

64,224 59,246

The resulis of Highfield Care include a notional rent charged by the Property business of £29,426,000 (2003:
£25,712,000). The actual rent charged is £36,776,000 (2003: £25,712,000). The Direciors believe thot it is
more approprigte o give segmental information on the basis of the nofional rent, which reflects the total rents
actually charged in 2002 on the current Highfield Care portfolio, as this provides a more consistent measure

. .allowing comparison of the underlying results of the Highfield Care business year on year. The results of the
Property business and Highfield Care include depreciation charged on operated properfies of £7,829,000
(2003: £5,233,000) and £922,000 (2003: £174,000) respectively.

Top right: Avalan Care Cenire — Nottinghamshire
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2004

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER, OPERATING PROFIT AND NET ASSETS (Conlinued)

2004 2003
£'000 £000

Net asseis
Property business 505,906 325248
Highfield Care (1.988) (4,707
503,918 320,541

4 B(CEP‘IIONAI. OPEI!ATING INCOME

" The following exceptional operating mcome/(costs) hove been incurred or pravided for and included in admin-

isiralive expenses:
2004 2003
£'000 £'000
Net write back of permanent diminution in value — fixed asset properties 3,300 1,686
Tenant receivership costs - {1,289
Ukima Holdings Group closure support costs - [147)
Jotal net exceptional operating income 3,300 250
5 GROUP OPERATING PRORT
Group operating profit is amived of after charging:
: o 2004 2003
o £000  £000
Depreciation of operated properties 8,751 5,407
Depreciation of other fixed assets . 1,032 827
Amortisation of goodwill of subsidiary undeﬁaklngs 15 114
- Depreciation and amortisation 9,898 6,348
Auditors’ remuneration (including VAT):
~ Group audit fees fo Group auditors 138 73
— Group audit fees to other auditors — current and prior years 4 74
— Company audit fees 48 62
= Other fees to Group audifors — Inferim review 41 36
© - = Other accounting advice 20 -
_ — T sérvices — Compliance 142 161
Operating lease rentals: '
— buildings 1,818 1,656
— equipment 9 188
6 SHARE OF ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKING'S OPERATING PROFIT
. 2004 2003
£'000 £'000
" Share of associated underioking’s operofmg profit 82 86
© Amortisation of goodwill {54) {54)
28 32

Top b aring Cote Centre — 0o Londondenry




Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2004

7 NET INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES

2004 2003
£'000 £000
Group
Interest payable on Secured Notes 37,265 37,265
Interest payable on bank loans wholly repayable within 5 years 1,350 2,599
Other inferest payoble - : 52 7z
Amortisation of issue costs and discount of Secured Notes 1167 1,177
Finance cosis, induding amortisation of arangement fees 459 1,586
Associcgtes
Interest payable _ 6 5
Inferest payable and similar charges 40299 42,704
- Group
Interest receivable on deposits {1,059) (776)
Interest receivable on Deposit Swap Agreements ur_nd Ze_ro Coupon Notes {7,473) {7,073)
Other interest receivable ' (36) 8
Associates
Interest receivable {17) {20}
Interest receivable (8,585) {7.877)
Net interest payable and similar charges N,714 34,827
8 TAX (CHARGE)/CREDIT ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
_ 2004 2003
£'000 £000
Group
Corpordtion iax (1,750} -
Income fax [445) (420)
(2,195)  (420)
Share of associate’s tax (35) - (24)
Total current fax (2,230) {444)
Income tax for prior years {600) -
Deferred tax {charge)/credit {968} 1,000
Tolal tax (charge)/credit on profit on ordinary activities (3,798) 556
Effective tax rate 10.7% - nfa

Top right: Acres Nook Care Centrs — Staffordshire




No. BRG]

'Notes to the Accounts (Continved)
- For tha year anded 30 September 2004

8 TAX (CHARGFE)/CREDIT ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES (Continued)

2004 2003
£'000 £000
Reconciliation of current year tax charge:

. Profit on- activities before tax 35,620 24,756
Tax on profit at standard rate of 30% (2003: 30%) 10,686 7.427
Fadors affecting the charge:

Disallowable expenses o - 1870 1,095
Non-taxable income _ ' ' (39100 (2,895

- Capitol allowances for period in excess of depreciaiion ' (22000 (2,924)
Increase in other shott term fiming differences - {1,540)
Utilisation of brought forward capital losses {629) -
Movement in revenue losses not recognised . ' - (743}
Utilisation of brought forward revenue losses {3,559) -

" Difference in rates of tax- . {163) -
Shore of assodiate’sfox -~ - 35 24
Group tax charge for the current year o 2,230 444
9 DIVIDENDS PAID

2004 2003
£'000 £000
Equity
Intérim dividend paid of 3.0p per Ordinary Shore (2003: 0.75p) 6,193 1,512
Final dividend proposed of £nil per Ordinary Share (2003: 2.25p) - 4,576
: 6,193 6,088
10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The eamings per Ordinary Share of 15.5p for the year ended 30 September 2004 is colculoted on the profit
affer taxation of £31,822,000 divided by 204,740,590 Ocdinary Shares of 1p each, being the weighted
average number of Ordinary Shares in issue during the year. The diluted eamings per Ordinary Share of 15.1p
for the year ended 30 September 2004 is based on the profit dfter taxation of £31,822,000 divided by
210,265,142 Ordinary Shares of 1p each, being the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue
during the year and assuming the Directors” and employees’ share opfions ore exercised.

The eamings per Ordinary Share of 12.6p for the year ended 30 September 2003 is colculated on the profit
after toxation of £25,312,000 divided by 201,589,427 Ordinory Shores of 1p each, being the weighied
average number of Ordinary Shares in issue duing the year. The diluted eamings per Ordinary Share of 12.2p
for the year ended 30 September 2003 is based on the profit affer taxation of £25,312,000 divided by
207,207,002 Ordinary Shares of 1p eoch, being the weighted average number of Ordinary Shores in issue
during the year and assuming the Directors’” and employees’ share options were exercised.

Top keff: Cofmonr House: (o Cenfra — Path
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Notes to the Accounts (Conﬁnued)
For the year ended 30 September 2004

11 PARENT COMPANY PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

2004 2003
. . £'000 £:000

Profit for the financial year, including dividends from subsidiory
and assodiated undertakings, after taxation . ) 7,783 1,316

The Comb.un'\,.' hos %aken advcnfdgé of section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 and consequently a profit and
loss account for the Company alone is not presented.

12 GOODWILL AND ACQUISITIONS

Total

£/000
Group
Cost
At 1 Oclober 2003 and 30 September 2004 2,300
Amortisation ~
At T October 2003 : (247)
Amoriisation for the year ' _ (115)
At 30 September 2004 : (362)
Net book value at 30 September 2004 1,938
Net book value ot 30 Septermber 2003 ' 2,053
Acquisition of Abbeycourt Care Limited

. Abbeycourt Care Limited was acquired on 1 April 2004 for £1,061,000 considerafion. Net assets acquired are
- setout below. The accounts of Abbeycourt Care Limited have been consolidated using the aequisition method. The

amaount of goodWII[ is £nil using provnsnonal assessmenis of foir values applied 1o the company’s balance sheet.

Feiir volue Fair valye
Book amount  adjustments 1o the Group

_ £000 £'000 £1000
Tangible fixed assets : ' 1,310 840 2,150
Current assefs
Debitors 127 %) 118
Prepayments and accrued income . 9 - 9
Cash at bank 158 - 158
Total assets _ : 1,604 831 2,435
Current liabilities :

Bank loan - (1,139 - (1,139
Trade and other creditors : {45) 34 1)

" Accryals {30) (162) (192)
Defesred tax {63) 31 32)
Total liabilities _ _ 1,277 ©7) (1,374
Net assets” : ' 327 734 1,061
Satisfied by: '

Cash consideration - 1,061

Top right: Meadowlands Care Cenfre - Aberdare
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
' For the yeor ended 30 Seplember 2004

12 GOODWILL AND ACQUISITIONS {Confinued} i

Acquisition of Ultima Holdings Limited- '

On 20 May 2004, Ulimo Holdings Limited was acquired for £1 considerction. The acquisiion method of
accounting has been used for this acquisition and using the provisional assessment of fair value applied to the
balance sheets of Uliima Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, the net assets acquired at fair value are Enil.

13 TANGIBLE RIXED ASSETS

Investment properties
o Freshold IeoaeLi'?oI:‘g
land and land and
buildings buildings Total
, T £000 £'000 £'000
Group : :
Valuation at 1 October 2003 454,620 10,020 464,640
Reclassification (1,930 1,930 -
Additions ot cost 234 - 234
Disposal of invesiment property af valuation : {700) - (700)
Reclassification of properties to opem’red properties at vuluahon (19,780) - {19,780)
Net surplus on revaluation : 82,656 2,350 85,006
White back 1o permanent diminution in value ' _ 500 - 500
Valuation ot 30 September 2004 515,600 14,300 529,900

Investment properties reprasent properies held for long term retention. Investment properties have been valued
by GVA Grimley, Intemational Property Advisers, at 30 September 2004, at Market Value on both porifolio and
individual property bases in accordance with The Appraisal and Valuation Standords published by the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

The Directors have reviewed GVA Grimley’s valuation at 30 September 2004 and have made a write back fo
permanent diminution in value of £500,000 which is credited to the profit and loss account. See note 4.

The historical cost of the Group's investment properfies of 30 September 2004 was £363,194,000
{2003:-£397,803,000}. Freehold properfies’ historical cost wos £354,247,000 ot 30 September 2004
(2003: £388,856,000 restated from £390,599,000) and long leasshold properties’ historical cost was
£8,947,000 at 30 September 2004 (2003: £8,947,000 restated from £7,204,000).

.30 homes (2003: 41} are subject to discretionary buy-back options by their respective operators. A further
51 homes (2003: 51) are subject to buy-back options by their respective operofors only in the event of
imecoverable VAT becoming levied on the rents charged o the operators. The buy-back options may be
exercised at purchase prices equnvuleni to the higher of a formulated figure or the “market value” (s defined in
the respective leases). '

Company

At 30 September 2004, the Compuny had investments in freehold .investment properties totalling £31
{2003: £31), representing the considerafion paid, including VAT, for the freehold reversions to 26 properties
(2003: 28}, the 999 year leasehold interests in which are held by NHP Securities No.3 Limited, a subsidiary
underiaking. '

Top fet: Purdonds Cave et — Gwent




Notes to the Accounts. (Continved)
For the year ended 30 September 2004

12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

No. 219860

Operated properties
L Long Plant,
Freehold  leosehold  machinery,
land and land and fixtures
buildings buildings  and fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £/000
Group
- Cost or valuation
At 1 Oclober 2003 231,091 3,430 41,907 276428
Reclassification of properties from
investment properties at valucfion 17,526 - 2,254 19,780
Additions ot cost 1,809 - - 1,809
Addition— on acquisition of Abbeycourt Care Limited 2,101 - 49 2,150
Reclassification 410) 410 - -
Capital expenditure on operated properties - - 12779 12,779
Write back to permanent diminution in value 2,800 - - 2,800
Disposals {8.233) - 25370 (10,770
Net surplus on revaluation 65,671 1,398 - 67,069
At 30 September 2004 312,355 5238 54,452 372,045
~ Depreciation
At 1 October 2003 - - (4,618) {4,618)
. Depreciation for the year 3217} @48 (5486  (8751)
- Disposals 66 - 294 360
Transfer to revaluation reserve 3,151 48 - 3,199
At 30 September 2004 - - {98100 {9,810
Net book value ai 30 September 2004 312,355 5,238 44,642 362,235
Net book value ot 30 September 2003 " 231,091 3430 37,289 271810

Operdfed. properties represent properties held for long term ré’fenﬁon. Qperated proherlies have been valued by
GVA Grimley, lnfe__rnafional Propeity Advisers, at 30 September 2004 at Existing Use Value on both portfolio and
individual propery bases in accordance: with The Appraisal and Voluafion Standards published by the Royal

Institution of Chartered Surveyors,

Operated .propeﬁies, reclassified from investment properties at valuation, were valued by GVA Grimley on an

existing use basis at their respediive dates of transfer.

The Directors have reviewed GVA Grimley’s valuation ot 30 September 2004 and have made a write back to
perimanent diminution in value of £2,800,000 which is credited to the profit and loss account. See note 4.

The historical cost of the Group’s operated properties ot 30 September 2004 was £303,477,000
{2003: £264,416,000). Depreciation charged for the year ended 30 September 2004 in respect of properties
under leases was £48,000 (2003: £42,000).

Top right: Rookery Core Centre — Gwent




Notes to the Accounts (Cortinued)

For the year ended 30 September 2004
13 TANGIBLE FDXED ASSETS (Conlinued) .
Other tangible fixed assets.
Sl Office
Lond and leasehold  equipment Motor
buildings improvements  and fidures vehicles Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £:000
Group '
Cost or valugtion ] _
At 1 October 2003 369 47 3,039 1,244 4,63¢
Additions in the year 215 - 1,343 969 2,527
Disposals : . - - (591) (405) (996)
Surplus on revaluation - 23 - - - 21
At 30 September 2004 — total ot cost and valuation 545 47 3791 1808 619
At 30 September 2004 — ot cost _ 220 47 379 1,808 5866
At 30 Sepiember 2004 — ot valuation 325 - - - 325
Depreciation o 7 o
At 1 Oclober 2003 1) SR N 7] 95  {1,099)
Depreciation for the year (10) 5) (655) @62 (1,032
Depreciation on disposals - - 420 200 620
Transfer o revaluation reserve 5 - - - 5
At 30 Sepiember 2004 {6) an  (,232) 257  (1,506)
‘Net book value at 30 September 2004 ' 539 - 36 2,559 1,551 4,685
Net book value at 30 September 2003 308 41 2042 1149 3540

Land cnd buildings at valuation represent residentiol properties held fo provide accommodation fo care
employees of the Highfield Care Group. Residential properties have been valued by GVA Grimley, International
Property Advisers, ot 30 September 2004, at Market Value in accordance with The Approisal and Valuation
Standards published by the Royal Insitution of Chartered Surveyors.

At 30 September 2004 the net book values of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracis were
£nil (2003: £20,000} in respect of motor vehicles. Depreciation charged in respect of assefs held under finonce
leases and hire purchase coriracts for the year ended 30 September 2004 was £4,000 (2003: £11,000).
Capital commitments

Group Company

2004 2003 2004 2003
£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Contracted and committed ' 2,114 2,028 - -

Mo 2728657
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Notes to the Accounts (Continved)
For the year ended 30 September 2004
14 INVESTMENTS
: 2004 2003
£'000 £'000
Group - _
- Deposit Swap Agreement of cost 15,350 15,350
- Accumulated compound interest _ ' ' 12,161 10,095
" Deposit Swap Agresment — Care Homes 1 _ 27511 25445
'Deposit Swap Agreement at cost ' 57,180 57,180
Accumuleted compound inferést ' 17,702 14,196
Deposit Swap Agreement — Core Hom&s 2 74,882 71,376
Zero Coupon Notes atcost . : i 34,010 36,010
Accumulated compound inferest 8,548 6,647
Zero Coupon Notes — Care Homes 3 44,558 42,657
Investment in associate ~ G.R. Patrick & Co. Limited ' 367 402
. 147,318 139,880
The Deposit Swap Agreement of £15.35 million represents the premium paid by Care Homes 1 in respedt of an
AAA rated Deposit Swap Agreement with General Re Financial Products Corporation which, together with

occumulated interest, guarantees o prowde for the repayment of £100 million Class A1 and Class A2 Secured
Notes in 2021.

The Deposit Swap Agreement of £57.18 million represents the premium paid by Care Homes 2 in respect of an
AAA rated Deposit Swap Agreement with General Re Financial Producs Corporation which, together with
accumulated inferest, guarantees to provide for the repayment of £180 million Class A Secured Notes in 2023.

The Zero Coupen Notes of £36.01 miillion represents the consideration paid by Care Homes 3 in respect of AAA
rated Zero Coupon Notes issued by the Evropean Investment Bank which, together with accumulated interest,
guarantee to provide for the repayment of £128 million Class A Secured Notes in 2028.

5 "G.R. Patrick & Co. Limited

£ The investment in G.R. Patrick & Co. L|mrted represents an effechve 25.01 per cent. share in that company, the
principal acivity of which is that of an insurance brokerage specialising in healthcare. The camying value of the

investment is analysed as follows: . '

: Share of

Goodwill nel assets Total
£'000 £000 £000
At 1 Ociober 2003 . . 275 127 402
Retained profit to 30 September 2004 - 58 58
Dividends raceived - (39) (39)
. Amortisation to 30 September 2004 : {54) - {54)

At 30 September 2004 : m 146 367

Top right. Muroyfield Care Cotre — Edinburgh
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14 INVESTMENTS (Continved)
A Subordinated
Shares in Investmentin  loan notes
subsidiary  ossociated o subsidiory
undertokings  underoking  underakings Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
Company
At 1 Ociober 2003 3,159 502 187,928 191,589
Acquisition of Highfield Care Plc 12 - - 12
De-ragistration of NHP Europa S.A., Spain o (40) - - {40)
At 30 Sepl'em ber 2004 3121 502 187,928 191,561
Net book value at 30 September 2003 3,159 502 187,928 191,589
.. A+ 30 Sepfember"2.004; the Compaﬁy held investments in the following principal subsidiary and associcied
. undertakings:” .
. : . Courthry of %
Name : ) : incorporation Holding Principal activity
Subsidiary underiakings
- NHP Securities No.1 Limited Great Britoin ~ 100.00%  Investment in care home properties
NHP Securities No.2 Limited o Great Britain  100.00%  Investment in care home properties
NHP Securities No.3 Limited Great Britain  100.00%  Investment in care home properties
NHP Securifies No.4 Limited Great Britoin  100.00%  Pariner in LLNHP Partnership
NHP Securities No.6 Limited Great Britain . 100.00%  Investiment in care home properties
NHP Securities No.? Limited Jersey 100.00% Investment in overriding leases of care
home properties
NHP Securities No.11 Limited Jersey 100.00% Parent company of NHP Securities No.9
Limited
NHP Securities No. 14 Limnited Great Britain ~ 100.00%  Investment in overriding leases of care
home properfies
NHP Management Limited Great Britin -~ 100.00% Management of care home property
: : portfolios
NHP Qperations (York) Limited Great Britain - 100.00% Care home property development
LLNH Limited Great Britain - 100.00%  Partner in LLNHP Parinership
Hightfield Care Plc Great Britain  100.00% Care home operator
Highfield Care Homes No.3 Limited Great Britain  100.00% Care home operator
Highfield Care Homes Limited Great Britain  100.00% Care home operator
Highfield Care Homes No.2 Limited Great Britgin . 100.00% Care home operator
" Highfield Holdings Limited Great Britain ~ 100.00% Care home operator
Highfield Home Properties Limited Greot Britoin  100.00% Care home operator
Highfield Home Properties (Perth) Llimited Great Britain  100.00% Care home operator
Highfield Care Centres Limited  Great Britain  100.00% Care home operator
Highfield Operations Limited =~ Great Britain  100.00% Care home operator

Hightfield Operations (No.2) Limited Great Britain~ 100.00% Care home operator
Highfield Healthcare Cenfres Limited Great Britein ~ 100.00% Care home operator

Highfield Cymru Limited - - Great Britlain -~ 100.00% Care home operator

Abbeycourt Care Limited ' Great Britoin -~ 100.00% Care home operator

Ultima Holdings Limited Great Britain ~ 100.00%  Immediate parent company of Ulima
4 L : Group companies
] Ultima Heclthcore Limited . Great Britgin  100.00% Core home operator
F Fton Helll Homes Limited - : Great Britain ~ 100.00% Care home operator

Utiima Care Limited _ . Greqt Britain  100.00% Care home operator

Platinum Healthcaore Limited . Great Britain  100.00% Care home operator

Associated undertaking

G.R. Pafrick & Co. Limited Great Britain ~ 25.01%  Insurance brokerage speciclising in

: hedlthcare

Top left: Botham Hall Cara Centre — Huddersfiald
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15 DEBTORS :
2004 2003
£'000 £000
Group o .
Trade debtors ' 12,649 12,625
Ciher debtors 1,856 3,847
Deferred tax - 1,000
Corporation fax : : 6 7
Prepoyments and accrued income 2,153 1,779
' 16,664 19,258
Company
Amounts owed by Group companies ' 38,559 35,836
Other debtors : . 45 3
Corporation fax - 3
Prepayments and accrued income 154 27
' ' ' 38,778 35869
16 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
2004 2003
£:000 £000
Group :
Short term deposits held by Care Homes 1 ‘ : , 7.842 7,750
Short ferm deposits held by Care Homes 2 4,245 3,750
Short term deposits held by Care Homes 3 6,166 6,000
Rent deposits held by Highfield Care Group 1,831 1,831
: 20,084 19,331

£3,644,000 (2003: £3,644,000} of the short term deposits in Care Homes 1 are reserved against long term
eventualities. The remainder of the short term deposits in Care Homes 1, 2 and 3 are required fo meet short term
interest on the Secured Notes,

17 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2004 2003
o £°000 £1000
Group
Bank loan due within one year — see below 750 -
Loan from third parly to Highfield Holdings Limited — see note 19 94 75
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase coniracts 1 9
Bank overdrafts o 750 2,000
Interest payable 9,755 9,759
Other creditors 7N7 8,227
Toxation and social security  * 3,646 2,079
Corporation tax ' 119 -
Income tax 1,465 420
Accruals and deferred income ' 8,584 8,040

~ Proposed dividend payable to Equity Shareholders : - 4,574
' 34,153 35,185

Top sight: Moothouse Farm Cove: Cantre — Nosthumberlond
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
For the year ended 30 Septemnber 2004

17 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR (Continued)

At 30 September 2004, a £750,000 loan wos drawn on the £3 million revolving credit facility enfered into with
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc on 24 April 2004, This loan bears interest ot LIBOR plus 0.50 per cent. and is only
available whilst there is a minimum of £3 million headroom on the £60 million revolving credit facility referred to in
note 19. ' ' '

2004 2003
) ) £'000 £000
Company . - '

Bank overdraft .- - . : : _ 1 3
Amount due to Care Homes 1 - - 21
Amount due to Care Homes 2 ~ 5 36
Amount due to Care Homes 3 : 3 50
Amounis due to Group companies . - - 1,34 806
Other creditors C 1,222 414
Taxation and social security 1,092 131
Accruals and deferred income. - : 650 105
Proposed dividend poyable to Equity Shareholders - 4,576
) : 4324 6,142

18 DEFERRED TAXATION

' Provided Unprovided
2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Group

Accelerated capital allowances - (1,000} (4,667) {9.122)
Losses created by capital allowances - - (69) -
Short term timing differences - - 952 -
Revaluation of investment properties - - 69,609 49,335

- (1,000) 65,825 40213

The Directors have token advice from GVA Grimley, Intemational Property Advisers, and consider that the
appropriate value of assets qualifying for capital allowances, to be Used in the calculation of deferred tax, is an
apportionment of the total portiolic value. Applying the valuation, the Group has, as at 30 September 2004,
unprovided deferred tax assets of £4,667,000 (2003: £9,122,000) in respect of accelerated capital allowances
and £69,000 (2003: Enil) in respect of revenue losses. The unrecognised accelerated copital allowance asset
would be recovered if in future they reverse in the some periods and entities in which suitable taxable profits arise.

The deferred tax liobility on the potential capital gain arising in relation to the revalued freeholds and long
leaseholds of £69,609,000 (2003: £49,335,000) is not recognised as the Group has no infention to sell these
properties af this fime and there is no binding agreement to dispose of them.

Company '

There is no provided or unprovided deferred tax in respect of the Company.

Top left: Lobley Hilk Cose Centre — West Midlands
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Notes to the Accounts (Confinved
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19 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

2004 2003
£'000 £000

Group :
Bank. loans due between two and five years 10,000 -
Less: Unamoriised finance costs - ‘ s (268) -
Bank loans due after more than five years ' - 34950
Less: Unamortised finance costs _ - (320)
Net bank loons ' 9,732 34430
Class Al Secured 8% Notes due 2021 60,000 60,000
Class A2 Secured 8.5% Notes due 2021 40,000 40,000
Less: Unamoriised issue costs (1,983) {2,103)
Unamortised discount on issue (530) {563)
Net Secured Notes — Care Homes 1 - . 97,487 97,334
Class A Secured 5.75% Notes due 2023 180,000 180,000
Class M-Secured 6.65% Notes due 2025 60,000 60,000
Class B Secured 7.65% Notes due 2025 ‘ 25,000 25,000
Less: Unamortised issue costs {5,750) (6,063}
Unamortised discount on issue (405) {428)
Net Secured Notes — Care Homes 2 ' 258,845 258,509
Class A Secured 6.125% Notes due 2028 128,000 128,000
- Class M Secured 7.125% Notes due 2030 _ 42,000 42,000
Class B Secured 8.25% Notes due 2030 24,000 24,000
Less: Unamortised issue costs {14,509) (15,097}
. Unamortised discount on issue 2,113 (2,203)
Net Secured Notes — Care Homes 3 ' 177,378 176,700
Loan from third party 1o Highfield Holdings Limited 375 450
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts - 3
- 543817 567,626

Bank Loons

At 30 September 2004, a £10 million loan was drawn on the £60 million revolving credit facility eniered into
with a syndicate led by Bonk of Scotland on 30 September 2003. The facility maiures on 31 December 2008.
The loan bears interest ot LIBOR plus 1.2 per cent. and is secured by a fixed charge on cerigin of the freehold
and long leasehold properties held in NHP Securiies No.3 Limited, together with a floating charge on its other
assefs and an unlimited guarantee from NHP Ple.

Secured Notes .

The Care Homes 1 Secured Notes are non-recourse to NHP and its subsidiaries, and are secured, inter alia, by
charges over the oveniding leases and the rents receivable thereunder, over the Deposit Swap Agreement with
General Re Financial Products Corporation, which of 30 September 2004 amounted to £27,511,000 including
accrued interest {see note 14}, and over cash and short term invesiment balances, which af 30 September 2004
amounted to £7,844,000.

Top right: Bouglas View Core Contre — Homilton
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.19 m AMOUNTS FAI.I.ING DUE AFl'EI! MORE THAN ONE YEAR (Continued)
The Care Homes 2 Secured Notes are non-recourse to NHP and its subsidiaries, and are secured, inter dlia, by
charges over the oveniding leases and the rents receivable thereunder, over the Deposit Swap Agreement with
'General Re Financial Producis Corporation, which ot 30 September 2004 amounted to £74,882,000 including
accrued inferest {see note 14) and over cash and short term invesiment balances, which ot 30 September 2004
amounted to £4,317,000.

The Care Homes.3 Secured Notes are non-recourse to NHP ond s subﬂdlunes, and are secured, inter alia, by
"charges over the overriding leoses and the rents receivable thereunder, over the Zero Coupon Notes with
.. European Investment Bank, which at 30 September 2004 amounted to £44,558,000 including accrued interest
{see note 14}, and over cash and short ferm investment balances, which at 30 September 2004 amounted to
£6,264,000.

Loan from third parly fo Highfield Holdings Limited

A loan of £469,000 is due fo Highfield Group Limifed {in adminisiration] and is repayable in equal insfalments
over seven years. Inferest is charged on the loan at 2 per cent. above base rate. £94,000 of the total
outsianding is reported within ‘Creditors falling due within one year” (see note 17).

20 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
: At 1 Oct Costs incurred Profitond At 30 Sep

2003  intheyear loss account 2004
£000 £000 £000 £000
. Group
Uttima Holdings Group closure suppoﬂ costs 110 (35) (75) -
" Receivership support costs 754 (17) {377 360
National Insurance Coniributions payable
on exercise of share options : 397 {660) 1,378 1,115 .
Tod _ ' 1,261 712) 926 1,475
Company '
National Insurance Contributions payable
on exercise of share options 274 {359) 1,020 935

At 30 September 2003 the provision for Ultima Hofdings Group dosure support costs wos based on the
expecied financial support to be provided to the Ultima Group of companies to setile frading liabilifies. On
20 May 2004 Utiima Holdings Limited was acquired by NHP Securities No.3 Limited, a subsidiary undertaking
of the Company. At 30 September 2004 the Directors have reviewed the remaining trading liabilities of Ultima
Group and have considered that the outstanding amounts are negligible. In their opinion, a write back to the
~ provision of £75,000 is appropriate which is credited to the profit and loss account.

The provision for receivership support cosls represents the expected financial commitment to settte knewn and
estimated trading liabilities of administrative receivership appointments made by Group companies. | is
expected that the majority of this expenditure would have been incumred in the current financial year.

The provision for National Insurance Confributions relates to share options that can be exercised under the 2001
Unapproved Execufive Share Option Scheme, details of which are disclosed in note 22, The aciual amount

payable is dependent on the Company’s share price at the date of exercise of the options. The provision has '

~ been based on the share price at the bolance sheet date of 234.5p. The rate of NIC used is 12.8 per cent.

Top leit: Bargoed Caro Contra — Cordiff
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Notes to the Accounts (Confinved)
For the year ended 30 Sepbamber 2004

ril FINANGAI. INSTRUM

- - Hedging Instruments Policy

The Group does not trade in derivatives or other injerest rate hedging instruments, but the Directors consider the
vse of oppropriofe financial instruments fo profect the Group against exposure fo possible inferest rate rises.

. Short term debtors and credifors have been omitted from oll dlsclosures, as permitted by FRS 13 “Derivatives and
Other Financial Instruments

Currancy profile . ' '
Al of the Group s fi nancml ||ub|l|’nes and assets at 30 September 2004 and 30 September 2003 were sterling
denomrnated

C Mnh.lnly profile of ﬁnancml habllmes

*The maturity protile of the Group's gross financial liabilities at 30 September was as follows:

Sank Other loans
loons and Secured  and finance Tolal Tolal
overdrafls noles leases 2004 2003
. £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £9000
In one year or less or on demand ' C1,500 0 - 95 1,595 2,084
More than one year but not more than two years - - 75 75 78
More than two years but not more than five yeors 10,000 - 225 10,225 225
More than five years - 559,000 75 559,075 594,100
11,500 559,000 470 570,970 595,487

The Group had the following undnawn committed bank loan facilities ot 30 September:
2004 2003
. £'000 £'000
Expiring in more than one year but not-more than two years : - -
Expiring in more than two years but not more than five years 49,250 -
Expiring in more than five years - 25050

49,250 25,050

Maturity profile of financial assets

At 30 Seplember 2004, the Group held two Deposit Swap Agreements and Zero Coupon Notes with a
combined carrying value of £146,951,000 (2003: £139,478,000) which will mature in more than five years.
- The Deposit Swap Agreements and Zero Coupon Notes will provide for the repayment of £408,000,000
(2003' £408,000,000) of the Secured Notes as maore fully described in note 14,

At 30 September 2004, the Group held short term deposrrs and cash at bank and in hard totalling £20,623,000
(2003: £21,104,000). -

None of the deposits had o maturily date beyond 31 October 2004.

Yop right: Atlandic View Cave Cenire — Cordiif
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cortinued)

Interest rute profile of financial liabilities

The inierest rate profile of the Group's gross financial liabilifies ot 30 September 2004 was os follows: _
2004 2003

£000 £000
Fixed rate _ ' 556,001 559,012

_ Floating rete . 11,969 37475

_ . 570,970 596,487

With respect fo the £11,969,000 of floating rate debt, in order to hedge against adverse changes in inferest

. roies, the Group purchased a £10 million interest rate cap ot 6.0 per cent. on 3 November 2003. The cop

-_éxpire; on 28 November 2007.

At'30 September 2004, the weighted average interest rate on the fixed rofe financial liabilities of the Group was

" 6.67 per cent. (2003: 6.67 per cent.) and the weighted average period for which the rate is fixed was 20 years
{2003::21 years). .

The floating rate financial liabilities ot 30 September 2004 principolly comprised bank borrowings bearing
interest at rates based on LIBOR.

Interest rate profile of financial assets
The inferest rate profile of the Group's financial assets ot 30 September 2004 was as follows:

UT

2004 2003

. £000 £000

Fixed rate 146,951 139,478
Floating rate 20,623 21,104

167,574 160,582

At 30:S'eptember 2004, the weighted average inferest rate on the fixed rate financial assets of the Group was
5.26 per cent. and the weighted average period for which the rate is fixed was 20 years.

The floating rate finoncial ossets at 30 September 2004 comprised short ferm deposits and cash at bank and in
hand, bearing interest of rates based on LIBOR.

Fair values of financial liabilities and assets
Set out below is a comparison by category of book values and estimated tair values of the Group's financial

liabilities and assets ai 30 September 2004:
C Beok value Fair value

) £'000 £/000
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group's operations

Bank loans & overdrofis . : _ (11,5000 (11,500
Secured Notes : {559,000} {625,721
Other loans ond finance leases {470} {470)
Gross financidl liabilities ' {570,970) (637,491
Deposit Swap Agreements and Zero Coupon Notes 146,951 156,101

Short ierm deposits 20,084 20,084
Cash at bank and in hand 539 539
Interest rate Cap £10 million m 32
Gross financial assets ' 167,685 176,756

The fair values of the Secured Notes, Deposit Swap Agreements and Zero Coupon Notes have been determined
by reference to prices available from the markets on which the instruments involved are traded.

Top lef: Stockion lodge Core Contro — Gevelond
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Guains and losses on hedges

The Directors consider the use of hedging insiruments 1o manoge the Group's interest rate profile. The foble
below shows the extent to which the Group has off-balance sheet (unrecognised) and on-balance sheet {carried
- forward) gains and losses in respect of financial instruments used as hedges. The gains and losses highlightad in
. the table: bélow represent the differénce beiween the book values and morket volues of Care Homes 1,
Care Homes 2 Deposit Swaps, Care' Homes 3 Zero Coupon Notes and the NHP Securities No. 3 Limited

£10 million interest rale cap. -

Unrecognised
Lossas

Carried forword

Gains Net Gains Losses Net
_ i : : . £'000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £000
* Gains and losses brought forward at 1 October 2003 17,683  (5,206) 12477 - - -
Gains and losses recognised in the year {2.066) {5407) (7.473) - - -
Gains and losses arising before 1 October 2003 that
were not recognised before 30 September 2004 15617 (10,613) 5,004 - - -
Gains and losses orising in the year 780 3,287 4,067 - - -
Gains and losses carried forword - _
at 30 September 2004 , 16,397 (7,326) 90N - - -
To be recognised before 30 September 2005 2126 5355 7481 - - -
To be recognised afier 30 September 2005 C 14271 (12,681) 1,590 - - -
22 CALLED UP SHARE CAPTTAL
Called up, allcited
Authorised and fully paid
Number £°000 MNumber £000
Ordinary shares of 1p each .
At 1 October 2003 370,000,000 3,700 203,375,555 2,034
Issued during the year - - 4,239,659 42
At 30 September 2004 - 370,000,000 3,700 207,615214 2,076

The shares issued during the year were issued for a consideration of £2,448,000 to employees exercising share
options under share option schemes.

Top right: Beawwala Cora Centre — Notfinghom
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22 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL (Confinued)

. The following tabls sets outthe share options in issue under the various Company schemes at the beginning and

end of the year, fogether with movements during the yeor.

Date - pnczem:r - from w?‘n?ch;l In issue Granted Exercised Lapsed in issve
granted share {p) axercisable Bpiydate 10c2003  intheyear  inthe year*  in the year 30 Sep 2004
1998 Inland Revenue Approved Executive Share Option Scheme
9 Sep 1998 1285 9'Sep 2001 9 Sep 2008 10,700 - (10,700} - -
S5ht1999 . . 1580 5 Jul 2002 5 Jul 2009 10,700 - - {10,700 -
©18Jon2000 - 1260 18Jun2003 18 Jon 2010 10,700 - (10,700) - -
L o ' 32,100 - 21,4000 (10,700) -
1998 Inland Revenue Approved Savings Related Share Option Scheme
1 Feb 2000 107.0 1Feb 2005 1 Aug 2005 15,770 - - - 15,770
1Aug2003- - 898 1 Aug 2006 1 Feb2007 147,496 - 2227y [10,133) 135,136
© 1 Aug 2003 89.8 1 Ayg2008 1 Feb 2009 74478 - - (17,733 56,745
1 Aug 2004 1534 1 Aug 2007 1 Feb 2008 - 13,144 - 13,144
' 237,744 13,044  (2227) (27.866) 220,795
2001 Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme
13 Sep 2001 350 145ep2004 135ep 2011 5,839,296 - (2,060,928 — 3,778,348
8 Cct 2001 350 9Qc2004 80c2011 343,488 — {343,488} - -
250012002 690 26112005 25012012 415205 — (260,585  (46,740) 107,880
- 30 Sep 2002 82.0 10ct2005 303ep2012 1,764,619 - (721,035 - 1,043,584
9 Dec 2002 905 10Dec2005 9 Dec2012 718232 - - - 718,232
30Jan 2003 1018 1Feb 2006 30Jan2013 ¢+ 466,830 - (37,346) - 29,484
7 Feb 2003 101.0 8 Feb 2006 7Feb2013 336,632 - - - 336,632
1 Jul 2003 110.0 2 Jul 2006 12013 118,178 - -~ (118178 -
27 Aug 2003 - 1205 28 Aug 2006 27 Aug 2013 1,546,879 - (329429 (31,120) 1,186,330
2 Feb 2004 153.5 3 Feb 2007 2 Feb 2014 - 65,146 - - 65,1446
2 Jul 2004 1925 2 Jl 2007 2 i 2014 B 6,233 - - 6,233
(27 Aug 2004 1988 27 Aug 2007 27 Aug 2014 - 20,126 - - 20,126
155p2004 2135 155p 2007 155ep 2014 | - 47,416 -~ (5,621) 41,795
' : 11,149,359 138,921 [3,752,811) {201,659) 7,333,810
2001 Approved Executive Share Option Scheme
12 Oct 2001 360 130ct2004 1202011 583,100 - {166,600 — 414,500
25002002 - 745 26002005 2502012 924,668 - [201,068) (241,200). 482,400
- 30 Sep 2002 82.0 102005 30%ep2012 201,211¢% - {36,585) — 164,626
9 Dec 2002 960 10Dec2005 9 Dec2012 31,250 - -~ - 31,250
30 Jon 2003 101.8 1Feb2006 30Jon 2013 88,452 - {5B,958) - 29,484
7Feb2003 1025 8Feb2006 7Feb2013 58,536 - - - 58536
1 Jul 2008 110.0 2 Jul 2006 1l 2013 27,272 - ~ (27.272) -
27 Aug 2003 1265 28Aug2006 26Aug2013 211,434 - - (23468 187766
2 Feb 2004 177.0 3 Feb 2007 2 Feb 2014 - 16,949 ~ - 16,949
2 Jul 2004 192.3 2 Jyl 2007 1 Jul 2014 - 15,604 -~ - 15,604
27 Aug 2004  199.0 27 Aug 2007 26 Aug 2014 - 15075 - - 15,075
- 153ep 2004 231.5 15S5ep 2007 14 Sep 2014 - 148,467 -~ (12,959) 155,508
x 2,125,923 216,095 (46322)) (305,099} 1,573,698
"Total 13,545,126 368,160 (4,239,659) (545,324) 9,128,303

* Opfions exarcised prior to the dote fgﬁm which ihey become exerciseable were a consequence of reductions in staffing levels.
1 Restated to reflect the comect clossifications between the 2001 Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Opiion Schemes.

Top left: Red Ross Care Contro— Gwent
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For the year ended 30 September 2004
23 RESERVES
Share Profit
premium  Revaluation and loss
account reserve account
Group £000 £'000 £000
At 1 October 2003 : 192,213 86,306 39,988
Net surplus on revaluation of properties - 155,300 -
Redlisation of net valuation losses on disposal of fixed asset properties - 1,164 {1,164)
Premium arising on issue of 4,239,659 Ordinary Shares 2,406 - -
Transfer of the difference between an historical cost depreciation
charge and the actual depreciation charge for the year - (1,078) 1,078
Retained profit for the year - - 25429
At 30 September 2004 194,619 241,692 65,531
o ' Share Profit
premium Revenue ond loss
account reserve account
Company £000 £:000 £'000
At 1 Ociober 2003 192,213 914 25,881
Premium arising on issue of 4,239,659 Ordinary Shares 2,406 - -
Retained profit for the year - - 1,590
At 30 September 2004 194,619 914 27,471
24 NET ASSETS PER ORDINARY SHARE
2004 2003
Basic _
Equity shareholders’ funds £503,918,000 £320,541,000
Number of Ordinary Shares of 1p éach in issue 207,615,214 203,375,555
~ Net assets per Ordinary Share 242.7p 157.6p
Diluted - . : :
Equity shareholders’ funds £510,523,000 £329,292,000
Number of Ordinary Shares of 1p each in issue 216,743,517 216,920,681
" Net ossets per Ordinary Share 235.5p 151.8p

Diluted net assets per Ordinary Share assumes all the Directors’ and employees’ share options are exercised.

Top right: Glanffrwd Core Centve — Coudiff
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25 GEARING
2004 2003
£°000 £'000

Consolidated

Secured Notes (excluding issue costs and discount of secured notes)*
* Bank loans :
" Other loans

Finance leases . :

Déposit Swap Agreements and Zero Coupon Notes*

559,000 559,000
10,750 34,950
469 525

1 12
(146,951} (139,478)
(19.873)  (19,104)

Short term investrnents, cush at bank and in hund less bank overdraﬁs

Net borrowmgs 403,396 435,905
Shareholders’ funds 503,918 320,541
Consolidated gearing 80% 136%
* Rsbimg to Care Homes 1, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3.

' ' L " 2004 2003

Excluding non-recourse financial assets ond liabilifies®

Bank loans- -

Other loans -

Finance leases

Short term invesiments, oash o bonk and in hand less bonk overdrafts

£000 £000

10,750 34,950
469 - 525

1 12
(1,396)  {1,040)

Net recourse borrowings

9,824 34,447

" Shoreholders’ funds

Net indebledness from securitisafion companies

503,918 320,541
{29,803)  (32,999)

Adjusted Shareholders’ funds

474115 287,542

Gearing excluding non-recourse borrowings 2% 12%
* Relating to Care Homes 1, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3.
26 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO OPERATING CASH FLOWS
’ 2004 2003
£000 £000

Operct'hng profit

Depreciation of operated properhes

Depreciation of cther fixed assets

Amortisation of goodwill of subsidiary underiakings

- Write back of permanent diminution in value — fixed asset properties
Loss on disposal of propetfies held for resale

- Share of associated undertaking’s operating profﬁ

Decrease/(increase) in debtors
‘Increase in creditors
Increase in provisions

64,224 59,246
8,751 5,407

1,032 827
15 114
{3,300)  (1,686)
- 27

(28) (32)
1,256 (3,435)
1936 3,639
214 173

Net cash inflow from operating adiivities

74,200 64,280

Top Tt Focth Bank Care Conre — Stcingehire
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27 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

No. A2%98

A1 Qg Cash Non-cash At 30 Sep

2003 flow changes 2004

) £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Caosh.at ban ar_ld in hand 1,773 (1,234) - 539
Bank overdrafis (2,000} 1,250 - {750}
Net cash at bank and in hand ' {227) 16 - 211
Short ferm investments : 19,331 753 - 20,084
Bank loans due wﬂhin one year - (750) o= (750)
.. Bonk loans due after oné year {net of unamortised finance costs) - .(34,630) 25,147 {249) (9,732)
* Other loans due within one year 75) 56 {75) (94)
Other loans due after one year {450} - 75 (375)
‘Finance leases due within one yeor : 9 9 m m
Finance leases due after one year ' : )] 2 1 -
_Secured Notes (net of unumorhsed issue and discount costs) {532,543) (1,167} (533,710)
Tolol = _ - (548,606) 25233 (1,416) - (524,789)
28 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT , 2003
£000 £000

Increase/{decrense} in cash during the year 16 (2,566)
Net cash outflow from debt financing activifies 24,464 19,887
Net cash outflow from management of liquid resources 753 1,462
Changes in net debi resulting from cash flows 25233 18,783
Non-cash changes in net debt {1,418 (3,689)
Movement in net debt during the year 23817 15094
Net debt ot the beginning of the year {548,606) (563,700)
Net debt af the end of the year (524,789) (548,608)

29 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following ‘annual commitments uader non- cuncellc:ble operating leases: 2003
2004

) ' £:000 £000

tand and bwldmgs expiring in less than one year 166 17
Lond and buildings ~ expiring between orie to five years 129 49
Land and buildings — expiring more than five years 1,511 1,540
O?her expiring between one 1o five years - 224
1806 1,930

Top right: Ridgawery Care Centre — County Durham




Notes to the Accounts (Coniinued)

30 DISCLOSURES RELATING TO CARE HOMES 1

For the year ended 30 Sepfember 2004

A summary of the financial statements of Care Homes 1 for the year ended 30 Sepfember 2004 and the year
ended 30 September 2003, which have been induded in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, is

os follows:
2004 2003
Care Homes 1 £000 £'000
Balarice sheet
- Fixed asset investments: :
Oveniding lease premiums, net of umorhsahon 53786 57,046
Deposit Swop Agreement, including accumulated compound interest 27,511 25,445
Net current assels - 3,567 3,566
Creditors: amounts falling due-after more ihan one year
- Class AT ond A2 Secured Notes, net of unamortised issue costs and discount {97,487)  (97,334)
Shareholders’ deficit (12,623) (11,277)
Profit and loss account
Tumnover and gross profit 12,888 12,150
Net operating costs (8224)  (7,439)
‘Net inferest payable and similar charges 60100 (6,213
Texation - -
Loss for the year (1,34¢4) {1,502
Cash flow siatement
Net cash mﬂow from operating aciivities 8,162 7,933
Servicing of finance — interest paid on Secured Notes (8,200) {8,200
Management of liquid resources — short term deposit placement {92} {50)
Decrease in cash in the year (130} 317

The summary of the financiol statements disclosed obove is prepared in accordance with the accountfing
principles generally accepted in the UK (UK GAAP). The financia! statements of Care Homes 1 are prepared
- under accounting principles generally accepted in the United Siates (US GAAF) under which the Deposit Swap
Agréement is valued in those accounts of £43,908,000 {2003: £43,128,000}, on a mark-to-market basis.




Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2004 -

. 31 DISCLOSURES RELATING TO CARE HOMES 2

A summary of the financial staterents of Care Homes 2 for the year ended 30 September 2004 and the year
ended 30 September 2003, which have been included in the consclidated financiol statements of the Group, is

as follows:

2004 2003
Care Homes 2 £'000 £000
Balance sheet

Fixed osset investments:

Overriding lease premiums, net of amortisation

Deposit Swap Agreement, including accumulated compound inferest

Net current liabiliies

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Class A, M and B Secured Notes, net of unameortised issue costs and discount

155,567 165116
74,882 71,376
(2,094) {3116}

(258,952) (258,622

Shareholders’ deficit

{30,597}  (25,246)

Profit and loss account
Turover and gross profit

30,380 28,051

Net operating costs (21,890) (19,862)
Net interest payable and similar charges (12,793) {13,281}
Taxotion {1,045) {420}
Loss for the yedr (5,348) (5512
Cash flow statement

Net cash inflow from operafing activities
Servicing of finance — interest paid on Secured Notes
Net cash outflow from invesfing activities:

17170 16,524
(16,252}  (16,252)

Investment in oveniding leases - {4,788) -
Proceeds on disposal of overriding leases 4,175 -
Management of liquid resources — short term deposit placement (495) (650)
Decrease in cash in the year {190) (378)

The summary of the financial statements disclosed above is prepared in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in the UK (UK GAAP). The finaricial statements of Care Homes 2 are prepared
under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (US GAAP) under which the Deposit Swap
Agresment is valued in those accounts at £72,548,000 (2003: £70,977,000), on a mark-fo-market basis.

Top right: Ash Grangs Care Centvg — West Midlands
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Notes 1o the Accounts (Continued)

&DMOSUI‘REI.A]‘INGTOCAREHOMES3

For the year ended 30 September 2004

A summaiy of the financial statemenis ‘of Care Homes 3 for the year ended 30 September 2004 and the yeor
_ ended 30 September 2003, which have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, is

as follows:

) 2004 2003
Care Homes 3 £:000 £000
Balance sheet
Fixed osset investments: :
Owerriding lease premiums, nef of amortisation 135,634 141,271
Zero Coupon Notes, including uccumuioted compound interest 44,558 42,657
Net current liabilifies - (23,941)  (23,968)

- Creditors: amounts falling due oﬁer more than one year

Class A, M and B Secured Notes, net of unamortised issue cosls and discount (177,378 (176,700
Shareholders’ deficit {21,127} {16,740
Profit and loss account
Tumover and gross profit 25290 22,609
Net operdling costs (16,842) [13928) -
Net irterest pcyoble and similar charges (12,835} {13,152
Taxation - -
Loss for the yeor (4,387) (4,471)
Cash flow stotement -
Net cash inflow from operating aclivities 12,974 13,366
Servicing of finance — Interest paid on Secured Notes (12,812) (12,813
Net cash outlow from investing activities:
Investment in overriding lease (422) (1,600)
Proceeds on disposal of overriding lease 404 1,550
Management of liquid resources — short term deposit placement {166) {1,000}
Decrease in cash in the year 22) (496)

The summary of the financial stotements disclosed above is prepared in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in the UK (UK GAAP). The financial statements of Care Homes 3 are prepared
under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States {US GAAP) under which the Zero Coupon
Notes are valuéd in those accounts of £39,645,000 (2003: £37,850,000), on a mark-+o-market basis.

Top left: Alexaondro Cure Centie — Hertfordshire




| Notes to the Accounts (Continved)
For-the year ended 30 Seplember 2004

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND GUARANTEES
(i) The Company guarantees the Bank of Scotland £60 mI"lOn revolving credit facility referred to in note 19 of
the financial stotements.

(i} The Com_pany has |ssued guarantees in favour of Care Homes 1, Care Homes 2, Care Homes 3 and
'IRG Copita Trustees Limited of performance by NHP Securities No.1 Limited, NHP Securifies No.2 Limited,
- NHP Securities No.3 Limited and NHP ‘Management Limited of their obhgahons arising in respect of the

' -ovemdlng leases and assoacn‘ed documents.

| {iii) The Company guurcmfees ’rhe Barclays Bank Plc £1.5 million overdraft facility issued o nghﬁeld Care
_Homes Limited. .~ - :

. (iv) The Company guumhie&s the Bank of Scotland £0.5 million overdraft facility and £0.1 million corporate
credit card focility issued fo Highfield Homes Properhec L|mrred and Highfield Care Homes No.2 Limited

respechvely

(v} The Company guurun’rees the potential liabilities of Highfield Care fo the Leaming + Skills Council. Highfield
Care are to receive grants from the Leaming + Skills Council for the purpose of providing training to
operational care home staff.

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

i} On 1 January 2004, W Colvin was appointed as the Company’s representative on the Board of G.R. Patrick
& Co. Limited {(*GRP"}. Details of the Group's interest in GRP are set out in note 14. Insurances reloting o
the Group's property portfolio are arranged through GRP and amounted to £728,000 (2003: £679,000),
the premiums being recovered in full from the Group's tenants. The recovery made from the Highfield Care
Group- in the year to 30 September 2004 was £319,000 {2003: £279,000). During the year ended
30 September 2004, the Grotp paid to GRP premiums totalling £1,281,000 (2003: £519,000) in respect
of non-properiy related insurances. Included in Group tumover for the same period are commissions
recoverable from GRP fofolling £87,000 {2003: £70,000) and director’s fees of £nil (2003: £10,000).
Al 30 September 2004, the Group owed a net amount of £nil to GRP (2003: £nil).

() On 1 April 2004, Highfield Home Properties Limited acquired. 100 per cent. of the issued ordinary share

. copital of Abbeycourt Care Limited for £1,061,000 consideration. J Murphy, who is an executive Director of
the Company, held a 50 per cent. inferest in Abbeycourt Care Limited. Details of the acquisition are set
out in note 12. No transactions occurred to the date of the acquisition that require disclosure in these
financial statements.

i} On 20 May 2004, NHP Securifies No.3 Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
100 per cent. of the issued ardinary shore capitol of Ullima Holdings Limited, the parent compony of
the Uliima Group, for £1 consideration. No transactions occurred to the date of the acquisition that require
disclosure in these financial statements.

Top right: Romford Geange Core Centre — Essex
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Notes to the Accounts (Coniinved)
For the year ended 30 September 2004

35 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
{i) The Fountains Tetney, an opérated propery with a book value of £1.6 million, was sold on 28 Oclober 2004
for an equivalent consideration.

{il On 1 November 2004, NHP Operations {York} Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of NHE completed
the purchase of a site in the centre of York for a total cost of £536,000, including VAT. Works on the 80 bed
care home to be developed on the site commenced on 22 November 2004. The estimated cost of the total
project is £3.2 million.

(i) A 5 bed residential properly in Sovereign Park, York was acquired by NHP Securities No. 3 Limited on
26 November 2004 for a cost of £270,000. The property will be used to provide accommodation to care
employees of Highfield Care. -

{i¥) On 29 November 2004, TBG CoreCo Limited, o company formed ot the request of the Blackstone Funds,

- announced o formal offer to acquire the entire issued and fo be issued share capital of NHP at a price of

260 pence in cash for each NHP share. Detoils of the offer were mailed o shoreholders on 9 December
2004 and are also awilable from the Company Secretary.

{v): Avonpark Care Centre, an investment property with a book value of £6.2 million, was sold on 3 December
2004 for a gross consideration of £8.3 million.

{vi) On 3 December 2004, Highfield Home Properties Limited acquired 100 per cent. of the issued share
capitol of Nightingole Private Nursing Home Limited (“Nightingale”) for a gross consideration of
£1.85 million. The principal asset of Nightingale is o 48 bed care home focated in Norhem Ireland.

. {il) On 3 December 2004, Highfield.Home Properties Limited acquired 100 per cent. of the issued share
~ capital of Dunlarg Home Limited {*Dunlorg”) for a gross consideration of £1.25 million, which excludes
bank debt acquired of £0.75 million. The principal asset of Dunlarg is a 58 bed care home located in

. Northem Irelarid. :

Top b Chessviaw Core Centre — Staffordshire




Bond-holder Information

Below are monthly summaries of the financial performance of the Care Homes No.1 Limited, Care Homes No.2 Limited and Core
Homes No.3 Limited portfolios fogether with debt service coverage ratios relating to each class of secured notes. These tables are
a summary of the financial performance information supplied by each fenant and include the performance of NHP's in-house

operotor, Highfield Care. The figures are not audited.

CARE HOMES No. 1 LIMITED

. Sep03 Od03 Nov03 Dec03 Jon04 FebO4 MorB4 ApcO4 May04 JunOd  Ju0& Aug0d SepOd
Profit per bed® 000 507 482 467 436 452 475 513 513 575 547 559 613 563
Renfperbed® £000 381 3.83 383 383 383 383 383 38 38 388 388 388 3.8
Rent Cover 133 126 122 114 118 124 134 132 148 14) 144 158 145
Occopancy% 879 879 870 876 863 869 873 867 873 870 878 882 884
ANotes Cover 316 299 289 271 280 294 318 318 356 339 347 380 349
BNotesCover 185 175 169 158 164 172 186 186 208 199 203 223 204
CARE HOMES No. 2 LIMITED

Sep03 Oct03 Nov03 Dec03 Jan04 FebO4 MarO4 AprO4 MoyOd JunO4 Jl04 AugO4  Sep 04
Profit per bed? £000 5.44 580 572 509 559 572 614 581 696 692 730 700 737
Refperbed® £000 406 420 420 420 420 420 420 424 424 424 424 424 424
ReiCover . 134 138 136 121 133 136 146 137 164 163 172 167 169
Occuponcy®% 885 909 909 913 901 901 906 98 909 99 95 98 9R7
ANclesCover ~ 349 360 355 316 347 355 381 363 434 431 455 442 447
MNolesCover 252 260 256 228 251 256 275 262 313 311 329 319 323
BNotesCover 223 229 226 201 221 226 243 231 276 275 290 282 285
CARE HOMES No. 3 LIMITED

Sep03 - Oc03 Nov03 Dec03 Jon04 FebO4 MarO4 AorD4 MayO4 JunOF  Jul04 AugO4  Sep 04
Proftper bed* £000 6.06 628 563 - 491 584 596 616 619 648 704 74 759 734
Rentperbed* €000 401 405 405 405 405 405 405 410 410 410 410 410 410
Rent Cover 1 .51 1.55 1 ._39 1.21 1.44 1.47 1.52 1.51 1.58 1.74 1.74 1.85 1.79
Occuparicy % 899 911 911 902 894 893 898 92 905 909 912 91 912
ANolesCover 405 416 373 325 387 395 408 410 427 470 470 500 484
MNotesCover = 293 * 301 270 235 280 286 295 297 309 340 340 362 350
BNotesCover 248 255 < 228 199 237 241 250 251 241 288 288 306 296

* Profit per bed and rent per bed figures are annualised. Rert covers should be viewed in conjunction with the rent per bed figures.
Additional information — this page does not form part of the audited financial statements,

Top right: Ashboume Core Centre — West Midlonds
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Portfolio Analysis
As of 30 Saptember 2004
) Minimum Minimum
Homes Beds Beds Cost  annual rent  annual rent
No. No. % £000 £'000 %
England 274 12683  T27% 489,169 52968  734%
Scotland 43 2,600 149% 109,278 11,546 16.0%
Woles 27 1,404 81% 44367 499 6.9%
N Ireland 14 756 43% 23857 2,658 3.7%
Totah a58 17443 100.0% 666,671 72,163  100.0%
Investment Propetiies
Operated by third party tenants
Ashbourne ' 22 1,352 77% 46798 5433 7.5%
Avonpark 138 08% 6,578 684 0.9%
Britonnia 7 430 25% 13,940 1,481 2.1%
Care Management Group 32 256 1.5% 18,799 2,000 2.8%
Craegmoor 4 270 1.5% 10518 1,157 1.6%
Hilleroft ] 66  04% 2,028 239 0.3%
Idun _ _ 18 1,014 58% 32,148 3,522 4.9%
Methodist Homes for the Aged - 2 121 07% 3,758 434 06%
Southem Cross ' 104 5897  33.8% 226925 27,124 37.6%
Total investment properties 192 9544 547% 361512 42074 58.3%
Operated Properties
Highfield Core - 166 7,899 . 453% 305159 30,089  41.7%
Totol operated properties 166 7899  453% 305159 30089  41.7%
- Total property portfolio 358 17,443 1000% 666,671 72,163 100.0%

Additional information — this poge does not form part of the qudited financial statements,

Top k- HosiwellCars Conte ~ Shefld




Properties Managed by Highfield Care

As ot 30 September 2004

Minimum Minimum
Homes Beds Beds Cost  annual rent  annual rent
No. Mo, % £:000 £'000 %
Group homes operated by Highfield Care
Total 166 7899 453% 305,159 30,089 41.7%

Third party landlords’ homies managed by Highfield Care

Leas_ed homes 7 394 1,373
Homes under management contract 13 633 -
Total homes managed by Highfield Care 186 8,926 31,462
Notes _

% expressed as % of NHP Group's jotal properly porifolio.

Since 30 September 2004:

— One aperated properly and one invésfmen?propedyhavebeensold.
- Two operated properties have been purchased.

Performance of homes owned by NHP at 30 September 2004
and managed by third parly tenants and Highfield Care

Note All values are 3 month c;vemges to the end of each quarter. .

~ Additional information — this page does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Top right: Ty Hofod Care Centre — Cardiff
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Notice of Annual General Meeling

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 12th Annual General Mesting of NHP Pic will be held of Block A,
Upper Ground Floor, Dukes Court, Duke Street, Woking GU21 5BH ot 9.30 am on 24 February 2005 for the
following purposes:

' ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive the Report of the Board of Directors and the Accouns for the year ended 30 Seprember 2004.
2 To re elect R N Midmer os a Director.
3. To re-elect Lord Sufhedcnd asa Dlrector
4, To re-elect C H W Robson dsa. Dmector _
“The blognuphles of the above Dlredors are shown on page 22.
5 To re-oppoint Delotﬂe-& Touche LLP os auditors and to authorise the Directors fo fix their remunerafion.
6, To uppmve the Directors’ remuneration report.

SPEQAL BUSINESS
7. To consider ond, if thought fi, to pass the fo1|owmg resolution as o special resolution:

That the direciors of he Company be and are hereby authorised and empowered during the pericd expiring
ot the conclusion of the next AGM or 30 September 2006, whichever is the earlier, to exercise all powers of
the Company fo allot equity securities {within the meaning of Section 94 of the Companies Act 1985 ("the
Ad”) as if Section 891} of the Ad did not apply in the cose of:

a. ollotments in connediion. with @ rights issue to shareholders where the Dlredors shall have the right fo
make such exclusions or other amangements as they may deem necessory or expedient to deal with
fractional entiflements that would otherwise arise or with legal or practical problems under the laws of or
requiremenis of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any tenitory, or ofhermse
howsocever;

b. other alloments of eduﬂy.éecuﬁﬁ&s for cash where this authority shall be limited in oggregate to the
allotment of or involving equity share capital not exceeding (in nominal value} 5 per cent. of the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Company as ot the date hereof.

8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as o special resolution;

That, pursuant to Aricle 14 of the Company’s Arficles of Associotion, the Company be and is hereby granted
authority to make market purchases {within the meaning of Sediion 163(3) of the Act) of ordinary shares of
1p each in the capital of the Company provided thet:

a. e maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to be purchased is 20,761,521, representing
10 per cent. of the issued ordinary capital ot 30 September 2004;
b. the minimum price which may be paid for each ordinary share is 1p;

¢. the maximum price which may be paid for each ordinary share is on any day an amount {exdusive of
expenses) equal to 105 per cent. of the averaoge of the mid-market quolations for an ordinory share of
the Company as derived from the Daily Official List of the Londen Siock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the day on which the ordinary share is purchased;

Top lef: Agrve Core Cant — West Midhonds




Notice of Annual General Meeting (Conﬁnued)'

d. the authority hereby conferred sholl expire at the conclusion of the AGM 1o be held in 2006 or 30 April
2006, whichever is the earlier; save that the Company may condlude a contract fo purchase ordinary
shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry of such authority which will or may be
exercised wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority and may make a purchose of ordinary shares
in pursuance of any such contract as if the authority hereby conferred had not expired.

By Order of the Board

Sheila Kaul
Company Secretary
7 December 2004

Registered office:
BlockA

. Upper Ground Floor
Dukes Court

Duke. Street

Woking

GU21 5BH

NOTES:
:

1.

A member entfifled to vote at the Méeﬁng is entilled to abpoihi one or more proxies to atiend and, on a poll,
vote on his-or her behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A form of proxy is enclosed with

“this Notice for use at the Meeting.

.. To be valid, the form of proxy {logether with the power of attomey, if any, under which it is signed or

notarially certified copy of such power of atiomey or other authority). must be deposited at or posted to the
office of the Registrars of the Company, Capifa Registrars, to be received not less than 48 hours befare the

fime fixed for the mesting. Completion and retum of the form of proxy will not preclude shareholders from

attending or voting af the meeting in person.

Copies of the service agreements of Direciors and the register of Directors’ inferests kept in accordance with

. seciion 325 of the Companies Act are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company on

weekdays during normal business hours and will be available for inspection at the meeting.

Only persons entered on the register of members of the Company at 9.30 am on 22 February 2005 are
entifled fo ottend or vote at the meefing. Changes to entries on the relevant register of securities after 9.30 am
on 22 February 2005 shall be disregarded. in determining the rights of any person to oftend and/or vole ot
the mesting.

‘Top vight: Holbywoll Dena Caro Centre — Whirley Bay
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Shareholder Information
ANALYSIS OF ORDINARY SHAREHOLDINGS AT 6 DECEMBER 2004
- Diredors Institutional
- Investor type ‘ ' Pivale . and spouses and other Totals
Numbe_r of holders 395 9 413 817
Pescentoge of holders 48.35% 1.10% 50.55% 100.00%
" Shares held 3,049,425 - 107,659 204,462,640 207,619,724
Percentage of shares held 1.47% 0.05% 98.48% 100.00%
: 1 1,001 50,001 250,001
. . _ 1o to to to
Shareholdings - L 1,000 50,000 250,000 500,000 500,000+
Number of holders © 168 449 91 35 74
Percentage of holders 20.56% 54.96% 11.14% 4.28% 9.06%
 Shares held . 95575 4326041 10946392 12,399,687 179,852,029
Percentage of shares held _ 0.05% 2.08% 5.27% 597% . 86.63%
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

24 February 2005

12th Annuol General Meeting

For further shareholder information or assistance please contact either the registrars of the Company

or NHP Pic at the oddresses below. Alternatively, please visit the Company's website

www.nhprops.co.uk {which contains detailed information on the Company) aond select the

‘contacts’ option from the main menu.

CAPITA REGISTRARS
" Northem House
Woodsome Park
Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield
HD8 OLA _
Telephone: 01484 600 900

NHP PLC
Block A

Upper Ground Floor
Dukes Court

Duke Street

Woking

GU21 58H

Telephone:01483 754 760
Email: info@nhprops.co.uk

Additional information — this page does not form part of the cudited financiol statements.
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